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February 28, 2000
Dear Shareholder:

On behalf of eVision USA.Com, Inc. (eVision or the Company), 1 would like to welcome
a significant number of new investors to our Company, as well as to thank all of our loyal
shareholders for their continuing interest in, and support of, eVision.

The year ended September 30, 1999 was clearly a pivotal year for us. Mot only did our
traditional brokerage operations improve significantly, but more im ¥, our
financial companies have reached several milestones and our technology subsidiaries
have established solid foundations from which to build upon.

As reflected in our name change from Fronteer Financial Holdings, Ltd. to eVision
USACom, Inc., we believe that we have made great sirides towards our goal of
becoming an integrated online solutions provider.

I am also pleased to report that eVision recently launched its web portal
{www.evisionusa.com). This site incorporates all of eVision's companies, providing an
overview of each company along with links 1o the comesponding websites, We feel that
this site will allow existing and new investors to feamn about the company and any new
developments that occur.  *

Financial Highlights

During Fiscal 1999, eVision enjoyed an increase in revenue that was primarily
attributable to an increase in brokerage commissions, trading profits. technology-related
operations, interest income on investments, and gains on the sale of assets.

Revenue increased by $6.8305.958, or 24.9%, to $34.193,262, over 1998 revenue of
$27.387.304. The loss from continuing operations decreased 1o $3,189.048, or 50.18 per
share, for the year ended Seplember 30, 1999 compared to $6,979.267, or $0.42 per
share, for the year ended September 30, 1998. Basic loss per share for fiscal 1999 was
$0.18 per share compared to $0.39 per share for the prior year.

Additionally, eVision successfully closed a private offering of Series B-1 Convertible
Preferred Stock where it raised $15,000.000 of gross procesds. Most of these proceeds
were raised subsequent to the fiscal year end.

Corporate Reorganization

Recently, eVision™s subsidizrics and significant equity investments were reorganized
along five new operating divisions: eFinance, eServices, eCommunication, elnformation,
and eMedical. This new organization was implemented in order to better reflect the
Company’s continuing focus as an integrated online solutions provider.



White this reorganization was purely conceptual, incurring no significant costs, it will
enable us to enhance the coordination and synergies between the rapidly evelving
eVisian group of companies.

There were several exciting achievements in each of these divisions over the past year
and the coming year appears ever mone promising.

eFinance

In fiscal 1999, ¢Banker USA.com, Inc. (eBanker) made substantial progress towards its
long-term objectives and goals. The eBanker investment portfolio performed well
beyond our initial expectations, and we look forward to a profitable fiscal 2000. We are
also very excited to announce the recent launch of the eBanker financial web portal
{www.chankerusa com). The completion of the first phase of this project is a significant
milestone and we anticipate that it will position eBanker at the forefront of the aliemative
financing market. The eBanker financial web portal provides customized financial
products and services to underserved consumer and corporate markets.

Also during fiscal 1999, American Fronteer Financial Corporation (AFFC) established
OnLineBroker™, a proposed securities brokes/dealer holding company for AFFC,
pending regulatory approval, that intends to provide online brokeridealer services to
AFFCs new and existing clients. Perhaps more imporantdy, OnLineBroker™ is
working aggressively towards expanding AFFC's presence into Asian markets.

¢Funds Global, Inc. (cFunds) was also established in fiscal 1999, with the objective of
providing ¢Vision clients wilh onlfine access to a diversified family of funds. The first
entity to be launched will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of eFunds which will manage a
series of technology focused hedge funds.

eServices

To meet the growing demand for internal and external web development and e-commerce
services, eVision formed a global web development subsidiary, NewroWeb, Inc.
{NeuroWeb) which is in the process of assembling a group of web development
companies in Asiz and North America. The NeuroWeb team was responsible for the
completion of the first phase of the eBanker website (www.ebankerusa.com), the recent
launch of ¢Vision's corporate website (www.evisionusa.comy, and they are currently
working on the first phase of the OnLineBroker™ website.

We believe the market for web development services is in its infancy, and we are excited
about its potential. We anticipate NeuroWeb to be at the forefront of this rapidly

expanding market.

To complement NeuroWeb’s developments, Corporate Net Solutions, Inc. began the
deployment of its scalable and robust Denver-based web-hosting platform 1o host the
eVision group’s in house and external client websiles.

eCommunications

eVision's advanced communications companies are focused on positioning the Company
al the forefront of the digital communications revolution.

Q6 Technologies, Inc. made progress recently when it completed two separate
transactions to purchase up fto a 50% initial ownership interest in Do Not Disturb, Inc.
(DMD), and to establish a joint-venture (CacheSiream) with an Internet-based,
multicasting technology developer, IBTech Pre. Lid, DND plans to develop Intemnet
produets and services designed fo protect consumers from unsolicited marketing
campaigns. TBTech is a Singapore-based company specializing in the developmen of
Internet multicasting technalogies. Q6 Technologies, Inc. is headed by John J. Cusick, an
entrepreneur whose career has centered on technology-based businesses including
software services, direct broadeast satellite and media services, corporate data services,
telecommunications and transaction processing. Mr. Cusick is the former founder and
CEOQ of PrimeStar Pariners, LP, a consumer direet broadeast satellite television venture
that he took from concept to its first million subscribers and from startup (o a valuation in
the billions of dollars.

Even more mecently, ¢Vision expanded its investmeni in the communications arena with
an agreement (o acquire 60% of the outstanding common shares of Skyhub Far East, Inc.
{Skyhub) in exchange for shares of eVision common stock, subject to shareholders
approval to increase the maximum authorized issuable shares. Skyhub intends to provide
high-speed Internes access in conjunction with advanced communication services and
valuable content via satellite to corporations and individuals throughout Asia. Skyhob
has already achieved marketing success through a letter of intent with the Hong Kong
Parkview Group Led., one of the most prominest Asian real estate development
companies. Skvhub intends to guickly secure a captive audience through installations in
Parkview's apariment complexes in Hong Kong. with Taiwan and Shanghai scheduled 1o
follow soon thereafter. Skyhub anticipates launching its initial Hong Kong Parkview
produit offering within the first half of 2000 w a target market of 50,000 subscribers.

elnformation

The ability to globally disseminate and selectively capture information is at the core of
the Imernet’s success.  However, we believe the oppertunities that this presents to both
the developed, and the developing, world have only begun to be discovered. In
particular, we are extremely excited about the potential of the Internel and e-commerce in
China. China's larpe and growing ecomomy creates a wealth of untapped online
opportunities. We plai to enter this market and bring the online experience in China 1o a
new level.

2Vision has commenced development of the new eVision China web portal. A preview
is available for viewing at www.evisionchina.com.



eVision China's intent is to create an interactive; online community for China. Through a
host of strategic relationships both within China and around the world, eVision China
intends to provide customers with online access to valuable information and resources.
¢¥ision China will provide content in both English and Chinese, and is working towards
offering its wsers a very broad range of information and services, including the latest
business, investment and educational news, commaunity, travel and leisure reports; access
to online bulletin boards, discossion groups, and Internet chat rooms; onling tools, free
email, and Intemet search engines; and, a host of other valuable information and
resources. Not only will visitors 10 €Vision China be able to access the information and
resources of their choice, they will also be able to imeract with one another online,
participating in online forums and Internet polls, and competing in online contests. In
short, eVision China intends fo provide China with the mwost comprehensive Internet

expericnce possible.

&Viston's management firmly believes that eVision's close ties to the Asian community,
as well as its global alliances, present ¢Vision China with an exciting opportunity and a
significant competitive advantage.

eMedical

Although not a member of eVision's consolidated group of Companies, eBanker's
significant investment in Global Med Technologies, Inc. (Global Med) and fts subsidiary
PeopleMed.com, Inc. (PeopleMed) helps to strategically position eVision at the culling
edge of the health care and blood supply management systems. These medical
information technology companies provide health care entities with toals to improve
certain aspects of the quality and cost-effectiveness of bealth care services. Global Med's
SafeTrace Tx™ software is designed to dramatically improve the blood supply
management system. Global Med's SafeTrace system cumrently manzges approximately
20% of the U.S. blood supply each year. PeopleMed is in the midst of developing a
revolutionary  software - application designed to provide comprehensive -clinical
information on chronic disease patients,

We anticipate continued growth for eVision's group of companies and look forward to
the coming year with tremendous optimism. We are just beginning to realize the results
of our strategic efforts and we firmly believe that we are well on our way to repositioning
eVision for success in the new millennium.

Sincerely,

Fai H. Chan
Chairman and CEQ
eVision USA.Com. Inc.
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PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

eVision USA.Com, Inc., {eVision or the Company) is a holding company that was incorporated under the
taws of the state of Colorado in September 1988, eVision's consolidated subsidiaries inclode companies
that:

o pperate as 2 folly dischosed securities broken'dealer:

« intend to provide transaction processing. networking and Internet hased services;

» design, develop, install, market and suppont software systems for the securities brokerage
industry; and

s provide leveraged financing, including proposed financing over the Internet.

American Fronteer Financial Corporation
General

American Fronteer Financial Corporation (American Fronteer or AFFC), a wholly owned subsidiary of
e'Wissom, was incosporated in 1974 to engage in the retail stock brokerage business in the Rocky Mountain
Region of the United States. American Fronteer is registered as a broker/dealer with the Securities and
Eschange Commission (Commission), is a member of the National Association of Sccurities Dealers, Inc.
(MNASD) and the Bostoa Stock Exchange, #s an associate member of the American Stock Exchange, and is
registered as a2 securities broken'dealer in all 50 states. American Fronteer is a member of the Securities
Inveszor Protection Corporation (SIPC) and other regulatory and trade organizations. American Fronteer
is also licensad 1o sell insurance products in cerfain states. American Fromteer's business consists of
providing retail securities brokerage and investment services, rading fixed income and equity securities,
providing investment banking services to corporate and municipal clients, managing and participating in
anderwriting corporate and municipal securities, and selling a range of professionally managed mautual
funds and insurance products.

American Fronteer conducts its business in four operating divisions as described below. American
Fronteer's principal executive office and Denver, Colorado branch are located at One Norwest Center,
1700 Lincoln Street, 32 Floor, Denver, Colorado 80203, American Frontest also has branch offices
located in San Francisco, California; Colorado Springs, Colorado: West Palm Beach, Florida; Atlanta,
Geargia; Chicago, liinods; Metairie, Lovisiana; Las Vegas, Nevada; Afbany, New York; New York, New
York; Dallas, Texas; and Reston, Virginia.

Rerail Securities Brokerage Division

American Fronteer conducts its retail secarities brokerage business through its retail securities brokerage
division. As of September 30, 1999, American Fronteer had approximately 101 sccoumt execatives and
approximately 27,500 customer accounts. American Fronteer generates commission revenue when it acts
as & broker on an agency basis, or as a dealer on a principal basis, to effect securities transactions for
individual and institutional investors. Brokerage commissions were $17.193,481 for the year ended
September 30, 1999. American Fronieer execules both listed and over the counder agency transactions for
CUSLOIETs, executes transactions and puts and calls on opiions exchanges as agent for its castomers, and
sells a number of professionally manaped muual funds and insurance products, primanty wariable
annuities. American Fronteer’s revenue from its sales of insurance products was approximately $70.340
for the year ended September 30, 1999,




Corporate Finance Division

The corporate finance division of American Fronteer provides financial advisory and capital raising
services fo corporate clienss. Financial sdvisory services inwolve advising clients in mergers and
sequisitions and in various types of corporate valuations, American Fronteer acts as 2 dealer, underwriter
and sefling groop member in public and private offerings of equity securities. During the year ended
September 30, 1999, American Fronteer eamed revenue of approximately $678,721 from its investmem

Trading Division

Trading securities invoives the puschase and sale of securities by American Frontecr for its own account.
Profits and losses are derived from the spread between hid and ask prices apd market increases of
decreases for the individual security during the holding period. American Fronteer makes markets in
comporste equities and trades in municipal and corporaie bonds and government securitics. As of
Sepiember 30, 1999, American Fronteer made markets in 32 stocks.

Public Finance Division

The public finance division of American Fronteer provides professional financial advisory services to
public entities, participates in underwriting and selling both negotiaed and competitive bid municipeal
hond offerings, and stroctares and garticipates in municipal bond refinancings. During the year ended
September 30, 1999, American Fronteer's participation as manager of underwritings and private
placements in offerings of mumicipal securities yielded revenue of approximately SH30,488.

Finaneial heformanion

For the year eaded September 30, 1999, American Fronieer's revenue of 520,901,459 accounted for 61%
of eVison's tofal revenue of $34,193.262. American Frontees's revenue for the years ended Seplember
30, 1998 and 1997 was 518,886,391, and 518,118,271, respectively. For the years ended September 30,
1999, 1998, and 1997, American Fronzeer incurred operating losses of 32,521,660, 53,910,741, and
$2.160,897, respectively.

American Fronteer Regulatory Net Capital

American Fronteer, as a registered securities brokerfdealer, is subject to the Commission’s Uniform Net
Capital Rule (Rube 13c3-1} and membership agreement with the NASD. In accordance with the
Mh¢WMme:ismﬁmdmmimm'mWafmhsm
§250,000. As of September 30, 1999, American Fronteer had “net capital” of 3419.273.

American Fronieer Proposed (n-Line Broker/Dealer Division

American Fronteer is developing an on-line brokerfdealer division, OnLincBroker™. that American
Froateer believes will provide American Fronteer with the ability i expand its broker/deales business into
Asian markets and will provide American Fronzeer’s existing clients with the benefits of on-line trading.
American Frontese plans to provide on-line broker/dealer services under the name of OLBroker Com, Inc.
A letter of intent has been entered into by a wholly ovmed subsidiary of eVision on behalf of American
quswmutmwhidrmmaﬂﬁ]iamfpaﬁypﬂmwdeuhpaphﬂmnu!'acilimeﬁmiﬂan
Fronteer's on-line trading of United States securities in Hong Kong. A separate brokeridealer license for
the on-line business of American Fromeer may be applied for and the on-line broker/dealer division.of
American Fronieer may become a separate conselidated subsidiary of eVision.

eBanker USA.com, Inc.
Cremeral

Froateer Development Finance Inc.. a Delaware corporation (Fronteer Development), was incorporated in
the stare of Delaware in March 1998 10 operaie as a finance company. Fronteer Income Growth Inc.
(FIGT), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fronteer Development, was incorporated in September 1998 under
the International Business Companics Ordinances of the Territory of the British Virgin Islands. In March
1999, Fronteer Developmen: was merged into eBanker US A com, Inc, {eBanker), a Colorado corporation,
primarily for the purpose of effectuating 2 name change o cBanker and becoming 2 Colorado

corparation

eBanker USA.com, Inc. is 4 29% owned consolidated subsidiary of eVision. In addifion to its 29% equity
interest, eVision also has the right to cast 50% of the vote in the election of eBanker"s directors due to its
ownership of the preferred stock of eBanker. c¢Banker has entered into a managensent agreement with
eVision to assist in the management of eBanker’s business including providing assistance in the {i)
identification of lending oppormnities, (if) credit analysis of potential borrowers, (ifi) structure of loans,
including vield-enhancing equity participation and collateral arrangements and (iv) administration ef
loans. In exchange for sech services, eVision is entitled to an anmual fee equal to 10% of eBanker's
pretax. profits as determined from eBanker”s annual andited financial statements.

eBanker was created with the of providing a wide range of on-line financial lending prodocts and
services. eBanker intends o identify, target and serve high-margin, global financial market segments,
throargh its interactive and moltimedia website. eBanker's website first became operational in September
1999, The wehsite is still in its imitial phase of development and will continually be expanded. eBanker
has been designed as a non-deposit taking, broad financial services entity, 50 that it is not subject fo the
regulations facing traditional financial instimtions. eBanker believes that it has the fexibality to serve
many overlooked market niches with innovative financial products and services.  Onwver the next twelve
months, eBanker internds Lo introduce a number of financial products and services including bat mot
limited o, secured consumer credit cards, corposate credit cards and customized comporate financing.
Customized corporate financing refers 1o individualized corporate lending agreements whereby eBanker
would receive both a fixed or foating rate of imerest combined with some form of participation. The
participation may take the form of revenue or profit sharing, common stock, warrants, stock options, fixed
assets or any other additionpal compensation mutually agreed upon between eBanker and its client.

eBanker also intends to provide & oumber of business services in conjunction with customized cosporate
financing. The services may inclede manzagerial advice. accounting and administrative suppoert, human
resource services or any other service where eBanker can cost-effectively assist its clients.

eBanker also plans to provide numerous informational services. These services are designed to aftract
users (o the eBanker website, with the intent of generating traffic, revenues and brand recognition.
eBanker plans to offer both free and premium Miancial information.  This information may range from
stock guotes 10 market commentary 1o current mortgage rates.  eBanker also plans o provide numenous
links to external producis and services with the imention of receiving royaliies in the process, eBanker
also plans 0 track individual wser preferences and 10 solicit input from {5 customers, customizing
websites to meet individual needs and preferences.

To date, eBanker's activities have consisted of raising approximately 513,000,000 from outside sources in
private placemems of securities, investing in debt securities of Astan corporstions and making loans 1o
affiliated and unaffiliated entities.



Financial nformation

eBanker's revenue for the vear ended Seprember 30, 1999 and the period from inception (May 26, 1998)
throngh September 30, 1998 was $1.920,379 and $37,923, respectively. Operating income (loss) for the
periods ended September 30, 1999 and 1998 was $429.138 and ${46.235). respectively.

Techno Tne.

6 Technologies, Inc. (6 Technologies), is a Celorado corporation formed in March 1999 by Q6 Group,
LLC, = Pennsylvania limited lability company, and eVision Q6 Techrologies is It:urrenﬂz_r a
development stage company with no continuing operations. On June 18, 1999, Q6 Technologies acquired
from eVisicn 72.8% of the owtstanding common stock of Secutron Corp.. a Colorado corporation that
designs, develops, installs, markets and supports software sysiems for the securities brokerage industry
(Secutron).  Secutron has one wholly-owned subsidiary, MidRange Solutions Corp., 8 Colorudo
corporation that is a distributor and systems iut:g;ajmof'omnpumpmﬁmtnﬂeﬂockym
region (MidRange). (6 Technologies® interests in Secutron were acquired in Lheeariy fnmﬁuun a:d
capitalization of Q6 Technologies with eVision. Q6 Technologies subsequently increased its owmership
umemwMy?E%mWImmﬂgi%inﬁewubw]%hmwuhlhe
settlement of a lawsuit by eVision and Secutron, Q6 Technologies determined that the Secutron and
MidRange businesses were nol an appropriate part of Q6 Technologies' long-term business strategy.
Effective December 17, 1999, (6 Technologies transferred its ownership interests in Secutron and its
whinlly éwned subsidiary, MidRange, back 1o eVision in renem for the cancellation of 5,000,000 shares of
Class B Commen Stock of Q6 Technologies previously held by eVision and certain contractuzl
concessions. eVision continues 10 hold 944,444 shares of Class A Common Stock and 555.556 shares of
Class B Common Stock of Q6 Technologies,

06 Technologies has entered into non-binding letters of intent to purchase up 1o a 3% initial ownership
inierest in two separale business opportunities. Do Not Disturb, Inc., & Delaware corporation (Do Mot
Diswrb) and CacheStream Corporation, a Coforado corporation (CacheStream). Do Mot Disturb is
dewhpmalﬂagecmmyﬁmishhemnfuﬂﬁughnﬁﬂmmﬁmymm
services. CacheStream is a company recently formed as a joint venture between (6 Technologies amd
IBTech Pte. Lid. & Singapore company (IBTech). Under the letier of intent, IBTech will transfer to
CacheStream all outstanding eguity of its wholly owned subsidiary, Ineractive Broadcast Technology
Sdn. Bhd., 3 Malaysian compeny (IBT Malaysia), upon the transfer of designated funds from Q
Technologies to CacheStream. TBT Malaysia is an eperating company thal owns a pmpnﬁan- software
platform for high handwidth Inermet multicasting.  Although Q6 Technologies intends o purswe
additional potemial business opportunitics, it has not yet identified any specific prospective business
-nppm'umitiesmrmithavemha!ﬁmMEML,wminmnﬁp&wmﬁwwﬂsmm
intn business OppoITUTLES. There are no assurances that Q6 Technologies will be successful in its effors
10 enter into a business opportunity with Do Mot Disturb, CacheStream or any other company. Q6
Technologies must obtain financing to take advantage of these potential opporunities.

Doy Not Disturh, Inc.

Do Nt Disturh is 2 Delaware corporation formed in September 1999 and intends 1o establish itself as an
Internet company providing consumer privacy related producis and services. Do Mot Disturh is a
development stage company znd has not yet had any business operations. Do Not Disturb is corrently in
the process of develeping its initial comsumer privacy related products’ and Web based systems, which ane
not expected to be completed or tested uniil the first quarter of the year 2000,

% Technologies' management believes that there is a significant opportunity to address the growing
concern of consumers relating 1o information privacy as well as the increased desive w0 control
telemarketing and direct marketing solicsations. Through Do Not Disturb, Q6 Technologies plans o
develop and launch 2 comprehensive consumer privacy Imemer portal and associated enhanced privacy
information services, and 1o function as a trusted intermediary between consumers and direct marketers.
The basic services, which wouabd be at a minimal cost to consumers, would be registration based and
supported by multiple noo-end-oser revenue sources such as advertising, direct marketing, and Internet
site affiliation and transaction fees. A premium service may also be offered at an additional cost.
Consumers would be able o choose not ondy the rypes of divect marketing contacts they wish to block
across the Intemet, telephone and direct mail, but also to indicate specific information and companies
from which they wish o receive direct solicitations and infermation.

Q6 Technologies entered imto a non-binding letter of intent with Do Not Disturb on October 18, 1999,
which peovides that Q6 Technologies will invest a togal of $1.25 million over a period of six months
cor ing in December 1999 in resurn for a 30% initial ownership interest in Do Not Disturb onder the
following schedule: Q6 Technologies may invest $250,000 by December 31, 1999 in onder 1o obtain a
25% ovmership interest; Q6 Technologies may invest an additional $500,000 by February 29, 2000 for an
additional 15% ownership interest; and Q6 Technologies may invest an addsiional $500,000 by March 31,
200 For an additional 10% owpership interest in Do Not Distarb. Once Q6 Technobogies makes the first
payment under the lettier of intent, Q6 Technologies will retain any ownership interest obtained from its
investments whether or nol it makes any subsequent investments in accosdance with the proposed
investment schedube. Q6 Technologies intends. to finance its payments 10 Do Mot Distarb through funds
obtzined in a private placement or, if necessary, through loans obtained through eYision or its affiliates.
Management of Q6 Techmologics has no reason to believe that it will not be able to extend its first
pavmen! deadline 1o January 5, 2000 shoold circumstances dictate.

Q6 Technologies and Do Nt Disturb intend to pursue the panicipation of other companies by licensing
proprictary software and market research from such companies in the ares of privacy services in return for
up 1o a 1% ownership ivterest in Do Mot Disturh. Q6 Technelogies and Do Mot Disturh also intend to
issue stock options o attract and retain quality and qualified management.

The letter of intent also provides that (6 Technologies will hold a 50% voting interest on the Board of
Directors of Do Not Disturb until such time that Q6 Technologies fails to meet the investment schedube
described above, ai which time Q6 Technologies” representation on the board of directors will be reduced
1o be proportionate 1o its ownership interest. The commilments contzined in the letter of intent with Do
Not Distarb are contingent upon development of a matually satisfactory business devebopmeni plan and
negotiating a mutually acceptable acquisition agreement.



CacheSiream Corporation

CacheStream is a Colorado corporatinn formed in December 1999,  CacheSwream was' formed in
mﬂmwimﬂwﬁnpmjnhﬂwmbemQﬁTmMgismdlﬁTﬂ. Pursuzant to the non-
binding letter of infent entered into on October 19, 1990 between Q6 Technologies and [BTech, IBTech
will transfer to CacheStream all outstanding stock in its wholly-owned subsidiary, IBT Malaysia, upon
lhcl:ransfcruf:ﬁﬁignamdfumisﬁfanﬁTaﬂmdngicswCarheStmIﬂTMahyséaisanqﬁﬂl:ng
company that provides multicasting software for the intelligent delivery and management of high
bandwidth audio, wideo and Imternet portal content for personal computers. Multicasting allows
mmmmmmmmhmmmmm;mnmwgm@m
cmwmmmmmmmhmﬂmmdnwmﬂy’smmw
tramsactions. (6 Technofogies and [BTech intend for CacheStream to apply the Internet multicasting
mdnﬁwmwmmwﬁﬂwmdﬁﬁmﬁmmumeMMWML&gm
screens through stréaming 2udic and video direct to personal computers through wireless satellite,
termestrial and wircline media. CachcStream is anticipated to initially provide a technology platform in
return for license or sale fees and then plans to leverage its technology capabilities into participation in a
select set of branded content services.

IBTech and Q6 Technologies will jointly own CacheStream with allowance for additional shares for the
founders and management. [BTech intends to invest in CacheStream all of the current assets and
operations of IBT Malaysia, fis wholly owned subsidiary, including infeliectual pmpertyﬂghs.mmis,
software, equipment and ongoing business arrangements, but excluding caﬁam service operations in
Sinpapore and Malaysia. Q6 Technologies intends to invest a total of §3 million by June 30, 2000 in
return for a S0% initial ownership interest in CacheStream under the following schedule: Q6
Technologies may fnvest $1 million by December 31, 1999 in order to obtain 2 25% ownership interest;
06 Technobogies may invest an additional 31 miltion by March 31, 2000 for an additional 15% owsership
imerest; and Q6 Technologies may invest an additional $1 million by June 30, 2000 for an sdditional 10%
ownership interest in CacheStream. Once Q6 Technologies makes the first payment under the letter of
intent. 06 Technologies will retain any ownership interest obtained from its investments whether or not it
miskes any subsequent invesiments in accordance with the proposed investment schedule. Q6
Technologies has entered into a verbal agreement with [BTech 1o postpoae its initial payment until
January 15, 2000 QﬁTedumimgicshasmmgedmpa{umafnﬂwchmhgim}ﬁaaimmim_ﬂ:ﬁ
January 2000 to ensure that IBT Malaysia is Year 2000 compliant, and will not imevocably commit its
funds for CacheStream until this test process has been completed to its satisfaction. Qf Technologies
intends to finance the inital payment through funds obtaired in & private placement or, if necessary,
through loans obtained through eVision or its affiliates,

It is anticipated that John Cusick, President of Q6 Technologies, will serve as the Chairman of the Board
of CacheStream and that Adrian Rietberg of [BTech will serve in a senior executive capacity with
CacheStream. The letter of intent also provides that Q6 Technologies will hold a 0% vwoting interest on
the Board of Directors of CacheStream until such time that Q6 Technolegies fails to meet the investment
schedule described above, at which time Q6 Technologies"s representation on the Board of Directors will
be reduced to be proportionate 1o its ownership inlerest.

mmemmmrﬂMmmmmmm_dmm
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for CacheStream.

Secutron Corporation
General

Secutron was incorporsted in Colorado in May 1979, Secutron's business comsists of designing,
developing, installing, marketing, and supporting software systems for the securities brokerage indostry.
Secutron markets hardware and software to securities hrokerage finms. Secutron is also an Internet service
provider providing Internet services ranging from acoess to the Intemet 1o development and maintenance
of websites. Secutron’s wholly owmed subsidiary, MidRange, is a Coforado corporation formed oo
Jangary 1, 1993, MidRange is an IBM business partner sefling IBM hardware and hardware mamsfactired
by competitors of IBM, and acts as a distributor for software prodocts which are proprietary to third
parties. MidRange sells hardware and software 10 businesses in several different industries. including
manufacturers, distributors and healih care providers.

Secutron offers the following software products 1o the securities brokerage industry. The STARS
software system is offered to broker/dealers who clear their own transactions, and is a totally integrated
software: system. which performs all of the functions, required by seff-clearing brokerfdealers. The
BCATS software system is offered 1o brokerfdealers who clear their securities transactions on a fally
disclosed basis through a clearing broker’dealer, and is also a fully integrated software system which
performs all of the accounting functions required by a fully disclosed brokerfdealer. The BCATS-MF
software system is designed for use by broker/dealers engaging in transactions in momal fonds, All such
softwane systems are designed to mao on IBM compuiers. Both Secuwron and MidRznge provide
consulting, programming and fagilities managemen! services o their respective clients 1o sapporn the
softwaze and hardware sold by them. As a resull of internal testing results, Secutron has determined the
STARS and BCATS applications are Year 2000 compliant.

Subsequent to September 30, 1999, ¢Vision entered into an agrecment to sell the assets of MidRange.
MidRange is included in the Q6 Technologies and Secutron business segmend, which includes computer
hardware, software and related technology investments of ¢Vision.

For the years ended September 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997, MidRange revenue was 38,391,914, 57,117,007
and $4,666,588, respectively. Costs of goods sold and peneral administrative expenses for the years
ended Sepember 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997, were $8.955.205, $7,130,613 and 54,784,780, respectively.
Accordingly, the loss from operations was 3563291, $13,606 and $118,192 for the years ended
September 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, The assets o be sold include 521,164 of fumitore and
eqpripment incloding computer equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $66,292. The agreement
provides for a purchase price of $75,000, to be paid in three installments of 25,000, $30.000 and $20.000
beginning December 1999 and ending February 2000,

Finameial Informarion

Szcutron’s consolidated revenwe for the years ended September 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997 was $9,520, 589,
$5.866,606, and 57,436,143, respectively. Operating profit (loss) for the vears ended September 30,
1999, 1998 and F99T was $(433 3300, 5(281,785), and 5129215, respectively. The revenue and expenses
for Secutron in firture vears will be significantly reduced as 2 result of the sale of the assets of MidRange
described above.



Other Subsidiaries

eVision also has the following wholly owned subsidiaries for which operations either have mot
commenced or &re not significant: eBroker USA.Com, Inc., a Colorado corporalion; eFunds Gilobal. Com,
Iné., 4 Colorade corporation; Fronteer Cosporale Services, hx_.acmmcm_ﬁﬂ
Solutions, Inc., & Delaware corporation; Fromteer Corporate Services, Inc., a Colorado’ corporation;
Fronteer Assel Management Corporate, Inc., 2 Delaware corporation; Newro Web, Inc., a Colorado
corporation; Neura Web Canada, Inc.. a Canadian corporation; RAF Services, Inc. of Texas., a Texas
mmwmmammamgwm;mwmmqam
corporation, The Company is in the process of changing the name of ¢Broker USA.Com, Inc. to
OLBroker.Com, Inc. OLBroker Com, Inc. in the intended holding company for American Fronteer and
the OnlLineBroker ™ division.

eFunds Global.Com, Inc. was created with the intention of acquiring and establishing mutoal fund
products for distribution to the eVision client base. Eﬁmdsﬁlnhai.(:nm,lmahnp!mmdﬂtlnpcm:m
more internally managed hedge funds, Fronteer Corporate Services, Ine, provides back office, accounting
and administrative support to companies affilizted with eVision. By establishing a separate subsidiary to
provide thess services to all of the eVision mpmﬁeathamﬁtsnfmmﬁe?pfm_ahmﬂ
specialization are exploited. Corporate Net Solutions, Inc. is designed to leverage the existing wide anca
network infrastructure of American Fronteer, creating leading edge Internet and intranet products and
services. American Fronteer has estahlished an extensive wide area network, linking its ewelve offices
across the United States via a high handwidsh intranet. This established network can be expanded at a
low cost, providing additional capacity for external uses.

C -
American Fronteer

The securities industry has become considerably mose concentrated and more competitive in recent
mioﬁsnmmmdﬁ&f&mshamaﬂham&dmhmmhmbequuﬁmﬁbymm
with other firms. In addition, companies not engaged primarily in the securities business, but having
substantia] financial resources, have acquired securities firms. The securities industry is now dominated
by relatively few very large securifies firms offering 2 wide variety of invesiment related services
nationally and internationaily. In addition, numerous commercial banks have entered into a variety of
new securities activities.

In 1999 legislation was enacted which mow permits commercial banks to engage in other types of
securities related activities. These developments or other developments of 2 similar nature may lead w0
the creation of integrated financial service firms that offer 4 broader range of financial services than those
offered by American Fronteer. These developments have created large, well-capitalized, fntegrated
financial service firms with which American Fronteer must compete. The secunties industry has also
experienced substantial wmﬁssiand‘mmmﬁaghyhukeﬂd&a&aﬁmumeﬁngfmimﬁmmﬂ
individual brokerage business. An increasing number of specialized firms offer “‘discount™ services o
individual customers. Many of these services are offered over the Internet for little or no transaction fozs.
Oniine trading firms generally effiect transactions for their customers on an “execution only™ basis without
offering other services such as investment recommendations and research. Swch discounting and an
increase in the number of new and existing firms offering such discounts could adversely affect American
Fronteer’s retail socurities business,

eRanker

eBanker is engaged in a highly competitive business, eBanker compeies for lending opportunities with
many companies, including numercus financial institmtions that have been in existence for longer periods
of tiree. Many of eBanker's competitors are significantly larger than eBanker, have established operating
histories and procedures, have access fo significantly greater capital and oiher resources, have
management personnel with more experience than the management of eBanker and have other advantages
over eBanker in conducting certain businesses and providing certain services.

06 Technologies

The business of oblaining and mainfaining interests in business opportanities is highly competitive.
Addittonally, the market for software and other technology based products is very competitive. Many of
Q6 Technologies’ anticipated competitors may be significantly farger than Q6 Technologies, have
established operating histories and procedures, have access to significanily greater capital and other
resources, have management personnel with more experience than the management of Q6 Technologies,
and may have other advaniages over Q6 Technologies in conducting certain businesses and providing
certain services, There can be no assarance that Q6 Technologies can compefe suecessfully,

Secutron Corp,

Secutron competes with numenous software distribution firme, many of which are larger than Secutron
and have greater financial resources. Secutron also competes with firms that specialize in industry
specific sofiware and those that offer a variety of software products to businesses in various industries.

Regulation

The secarities industry in the United States is subject to extensive regulation under federal and stase laws.
The Commission is & federal agency charged with administration of the federal securities laws. Much of
the regulation of broker/dealers has been delegated to self regulatory organizations, principally the NASD
and the exchanges. These self-regulatory organizations adopt neles (which are subject 1o approval by the
Commission) for governing the indusiry and conduct periodic examinations of member broker/dealers.
Securities firms are also subject to regolation by state securities commissions in the states in which they
do business. Broker/dealers are subject 1o regulations that cover all aspects of the securities business,
including sales methods, wading practices among brokerfdealers, capital structure of securities firms,
record keeping, and the conduct of directors, officers, and employees.  Additional legislation, changes in
rules promulgated by the Commission and by self-regulatory orgamizations, or changes in the
interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules ofien directly affect the method of operation and
profitability of brokenidealers. The Commission, the selfl regulatory anthorities, and the slate securities
commisstons may conduct proceedings which can resalt in censure, fine, suspension, or expulsion of a
brokesideater, its officers, or employees.

Armerican Fronteer is required by federal law 19 belong to the SIPC. 'When the SIPC fund Fafls below a
certain minimium amount, members are required 10 pay annoal assessments. The SIPC fund provides
protection for securities held in customer accounts op to $3M0,000 per customer, with a limitation of
$100,000 o claims for cash balances.

American Fronteer is subject o the Commission’s Uniform Net Capital Rule which is designed 1o
measure the financial integrity and liquidity of a broker/dealer and the minimnm pet capital deemed
necessary to meet its commitments 1o its customers. American Fronteer is in compliance with the Rule.
Failure o maintain the required net czpital may subject American Froateer to suspension by the
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Cormmmission or other regulatory bodies and may ultimately require its liguidation. eVision is not itself a
registered brokerfdealer and is not subject to the Ruole. However, under the Rule, ¢Vision could be
aﬂxmdﬁﬂwmquhzmmﬂmahﬂm‘dmlumchnmmmbcmhm«
temporarily restricied by the Commission from the withdrawal of equity capital by a stockholder such as
eVisioa.

American Fronteer is also subject to regulation under federal and state laws samounding the insurance
industry for the insurance products, primarily varisble annuitics, which its insurance Hoensed registered
representatives s=1l.

Private Placements
eBanker

On May 26, 1998, Fronteer Development, which was merged into eBanker in March 1999, commenced a
private placement of 30,000 units each consisting of:

« oo 51000 convertible debenmre, dwe August 1, 2008, paying 10% per anmumg

o 100 Class A common shares; and

e warranis exercisable at $3.00 per share for 500 Class A common shares.

Prior to closing of the offering in December 1998, 7958 units were issoed in the private placcment
resulting in proceeds of 56,832 851, net of issuance costs of $1.125,149. For participating in the offering
American Fronteer teceived warrants to purchase shares of Fromteer Development’s common stock,
reciived a commission of 10% of the proceeds and received a non-accounishie expense allowance of 3%
the proceeds, The offering memorandum for the private placement included 3.000,00( shares of
anthorized Class B commen stock, and required eVision to purchase Class B common stock in the
amoant-of 1o less than 26,675 of the amount of units parchased by outside investors. €Vision parchased
707,466 shares of the Class B common stock for $2,122.398. There were no commissions Or expenses
associated with the Class B common issuance,

On March 3, 1999, eBanker commenced a second private placement of 3,000,000 units, each consisling
of one share of commen stock and one detachable warrant to purchase enc share of common stock. The
offering closed in July 1999, In the private placement, 899,444 units were issued resuliing in procesds off
$4,678.754, net of issuance costs of $717.912. For participating in the ffering American Fromeer
rmeimiﬁveywwmmmmmm.%smmﬂeﬂmta’smﬂwhmimda
commission of 10% of the proceeds and teceived a non-accountable expense allowance of 3% the

proceeds,
eVision

On October 16, 1998, eVikion commenced & private placement of 1,500,000 shares of its Series B
Preferred Stock at @ price of $10.00 per share. Before the offering was terminated. 25500 shares were
soid. On May 12, 1999, eVision commenced a second private placement of 1300000 shares of its
Convertible Series B Prefierred Stock at $10.00 per share. The 25,500 shares of Series B Preferred Stock
sold in eVision's first offering were exchanped for Convertible Series B Preferred Stock. Including the
shases exchanged from the first offering, 110.500 shares of Convertible Series B Preferred Stock were
sold in the second offering before it was terminated. ¢Vision received $860,147 net of offering costs of
£244 853 for the 110,500 shares. The Convertible Series B Preferred Stock was offered by American
Fronteer, which was issued warrants, which would allow the holder wo purchase shares of eVision's
Converible Series B Coavertible Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $12.00 pes share for five years-

American Fronteer also was to receive a commission of 10% and a non-accountable expense allowance of
3% of the total amount sold in the offering.

On September 27, 1999, eVision commenced a third private offering of 1,500,000 shares of its
Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock at a price of SI000 per share and 110,500 shares were being
offered in exchange for the Convertible Series B Preferred Stock on a ene-for-one basis, The Convertible
Serics B-1 Prefesred Stock is being offered by American Froateer, which will be issued a maximum of
150,000 warrants, depending on the proceeds of the offering, that allow the holder to purchase shares of
eVision's Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock at a purchase price of S12.00 per share for five years.
American Fronieer also is to receive a commission of 10% and & non-accoumizable expense allowance of
3% of the wotal amount sold in the offering. The offering of the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock
will continee until all 1,500,000 shares of Conventibla Series B-1 Prefesred Stock are sold or exchanged
or until December 31, 1999, whichever is earlier. eVision has reserved the right to continue the offering

December 31, 1999, Through December 24, 1999, approximately 350,000 shares of Convertible
Series B-1 Preferred Swock have been sold for gross proceeds of $3,500,000.

The Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock has & cumulative annual dividend rate payable semi-anmuatly
of 8% in cash and 7% in additional shares of the Conmvertible Series B-1 Prefemred Stock. Online
Intermnational has guaranteed the payment of any cash dividends that accroe on the Convertible Series B-1
Preferred Seock through October 31, 2002, The semi-annual dividend payable on shares of Convertible
Serbes B-1 Preferred Stock will be eguivalent to three and ene-hall one hundredths of a share of
Convertitde Series B-1 Preferred Stock for each outstanding share of Convertible Series B-1 Preferred
Stock. Any Convertible Series B-1 Prefemred Stock fssued as a dividend on the Convertible Seres B-1
Preferred Stock will have the same dividend and the same terms as the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred
Siock. The dividend on the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock is payable semi-annoally beginning
October 31, 1999, and continuing each Apal 30 and Ociober 31 thereafter, when and if declared by the
Board of Directors. Each share of Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock is immediately convertible by
the hobder infto 100 shares of ¢Vision's common stock which is equivalent to @ price of S1.00 per share of
common stock. 1f the common stock does not have a closing bid price of at least $1.15 per share for az
least 20 trading days during the period commencing on Sepiember 30, 1999, and ending on Septzmber 30,
2000, the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock will be convertible by the holder into common stock
determined by dividing $10 by a price equal 1o the higher of the five day average closing bid price of the
commaon stock peior 1o September 30, 2000, or $0.50 per share. In addition, each share of Coavestible
Series B-1 Preferred Stock is automatically convertibie into 10) shares of commaon stock at $1.00 per share
at such time as the closing bid price of the common stock is at least $4.00 per share for 30 consecutive
irading days. The Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock is redeemable by eVision on or after October 1,
2X)3, a1 a price of $12.50 per share plus any accroed and unpaid dividends.

Online International has guaranteed through October 31, 2002, the payment of each annual 8% cash
dividend on the Convertible Serics B-1 Preferved Stock that is being offered by eVision if such dividend
is not paid by eVision. Inconsiderasion for making such guaranty, ¢Vision issued an affiliaste of Online
International 250,000 shares of eVision's common stock which had a value of $62,500 based on the
closing price of $0.25 per share of the common stock o the date of the sgreement. IF Online
Internaticmal is requined 1o make payment as a result of its goaranty, Online International or its designes
will receive a 12% convertible debenture equivalent to the amount that Onfine Intemational is required
pay on the guaranty unless the act of ¢Vision in giving Online Imemational or its designes the 12%
convertible debenture would be -deemed 1o be an illegal distnibution under the Colorado Busimess
Cogporation Act, In such event. Onfine International or is designes would receive, instead of a 12%
coavertible debenture, the number of shares of common stock as is equal to the todal amount of the
dividend paid divided by 90% of the conversion price of the common stock as defined in the 12%



convertible debenture, In general, the conversion price of the convenible debenture will be the market
price of the common stock oa the date of conversion.

Sale of Fronteer Capital

On July 300 1999, ¢Vision entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with Ladsleigh Tnvestments Limited,
BV whereby eVision agreed 10 sell and Ladeleigh zgreed to purchase [00% of the stock of a wholly
owned subsidiary of eVision, Fronteer Capital, Inc., for $3,000.000, excluding cash and warrants to
purchase equity in a publicly traded company. The primary assets were approximately 122,084,000
shares of the common stock of Online International that were originally purchased in open market
transactions on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and that were accoanted for as rading securities. The
purchase price of Fronteer Capital was based on the fair value of the primary asseis held by Fronteer
Capital as of July 30, 1999 based on a third party quodation service. Unrealized gains on the secanties
held by Fromeer Capital through Juky 30, 1999 of approximately $1.682.000 have been recognized. The
purchase price was paid in cash of $150,000 and in the form of a promissery note for $2,850,000, which
bears interest at 14% and is due July 30, 2000. To secure the promissory note, eVision holds all the
primary assets of Fronteer Capital in escrow. Prior £o the trensaction, there was no material relationship
between Ladsleigh and e¥ision or amy of its affiliates, directors or officers.

Investoent in Matual Fund Developer and

eViston has entered into a letter of intent to acquire control of Quaker Funds, Inc. which is the developer
andsponsorndlheMerﬁﬂyuf?und&agrmpnfsixmmlfmﬂshvﬁ:gnppmﬂmlj
70,000,000 in assets under management. An independent institutional investment advisor manages each
fund. As proposed, the acquisition inchsdes (he issuance of 4,666,667 shares of eVision's common stock
for approxirmately 60% of the outstanding common stock of Quaker Funds. The shareholders of Quaker
Funds that receive e¥ision's commiod stock will be able to sell their common stack back to eVision if
eVision's common stock does not trade at an average price of $3.00 per share for a period of time between
one and two years after the closing. There are also provisions wherehy the Quaker Funds shareholders
may sell their remaining 40% ownership in Quaker Funds to eVision or bay back their 60% interest in
Quaker Funds. The transaction is subject to the-execution of a definitive agreement, which is currently
being negotiated. There are no assurances that the transaction will be consummated on the terms
specified in the letter of intent or at all.

Emplovees

As of September 30, 1999, eVision and its subsidiaries had 196 full time employees. One hundred sixty-
five were employed by American Fronteer; eleven were emploved by Froneer Corporate Services, Inc., a
whelly ewned subsidiary of eVisicn that provides management, accounting and adminisirative services fo
&Vision: thres were emploved by Corporate Net Selutions, a wholly owned subsidiary of eVision that
established American Fronteer's wide area network linking its mwelve offices via a high bandwidth
intranet: one was employed by Q6 Techoologies, Inc.; and 16 were emploved by Secutron and MidRange.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

‘The offices for ¢Vision, its wholly owned subsidiaries and eBanker are Jocated at One Noraest Center,
1700 Lincotn Street, 32™ Floor, Denver, Colorado, 80203, The offices consist of approximately 47,071
square feet of subleased space. The sublease expires om April 30, 2007. eVision currently pays moathly
rent of 562,800 for the space. eVision also lezses space for its branch offices pursizant 10 leases that have
various renfal rates and expine 3t vanious dates,

The offices for Secutron are located at 3773 Cherry Creek North Drive, Suite 825, Denver, Colorado,
80209, The offices consist of approximately 5,946 square feet of leased space. The lease expires on
August 31, 2000 and requires the payment of monthly rentals of $6,784 for the space.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

eVision is @ defendant in certain arbitration and litigation mamwers arising from is activities as a
brokerfdealer.  In-the opinien of management, thest matters, incloding any damages awarded against
eVision, have been adequately provided for in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, and
the ubtimate resolstion of ihe other arbitration and litigation matters will not have a significant adverse
effect on the consolidated results of operations or the consolidated financial pesition of eVision.

Amhony R Kay, a former officer, director and shareholder of Secutron, individually. and in conjunction
with his coasulting company. ARK Consulting Services Inc.. fiked claims on July 30, 1998, in the Distrct
Court for the City and County of Denver, Colorado against eVision, Secutron and Midrange and against
certain current and former officers, directors, shareholders and affiliates of eVision. Secutroa and the
other named defendants have entered info an agreement &0 settle the lawsuil. Pursuant to the terms of the
settlement, Secutron paid Mr. Kay $400.000 in cash and eVision issued Mr. Kay 550,000 shanes of
common stock.  In addition, eVision agreed to register Mr. Kay's shares of common stock for resale.
eVision and the other defendants also agread that if Mr. Kay does not receive a net amount of at least
$325.000 from the sale of the common stock, Secutron and the other defendants will pay Mr. Kay the
difference besween what Mr. Kay does receive and 3325000 or provide Mr. Kay with additional shares of
commeon stock to make up the deficiency based upon the then cument trading prices of the common stock.
If Mir. Kay does not realize $325.000 from the sale of ali of the common stock by April 1, 2000, Mr. Kay
is entitled 1o receive the deficiency in cash. Amny sales by Mr. Kay of the common stock must be made in
a commercially reasonable manner. As part of the agreement, all of the common stock of Secutron held
by Anthony R. Kay and his family, which approximated 5% of the cotstanding common stock of
Secutron, were retumned o Secutron and the other defendants or their assigns.  In addition. ARK
Consulting agreed to cancel the setilement - agreement thal required payments 10 ARK Consulting of
$10.000 per month through the year 2011.

On December 23, 1996, AFFC received notification of an arbitration award in NASD Arbitration No. 95-
03062, Chang, et al. v. AFFC that was oniginally filed on October 21, 1995, The allegations in the case
relaie to a private placement sold by a former broker a8 AFFC, all of which sales occurred prior to his
employment by AFFC. In 1996, AFFC provided for damages that were awarded in the amoumt $424.824
against AFFC, which AFFC appealed. During the year ended September 30, 1999, AFFC lost the first
appeal and the count ordered AFFC to place on deposit, in a restricted cach account. the amount of
$575,000. The deposit will remain in the restricted account pending the cutcome of the next level of
appeal,
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Mo matter was submitted to 2 vote of eVision's security holders during eVision’s fiscal quarter ended
September 30, 1999,

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

{a) Markel Information.  e¢Vision's common stock was traded on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market
under the symbol FDIR from March 27, 1980 1o October 21, 1998, when it began trading on the OTC
Balletin Board. ¢Vision's comimon stock is now traded under the symbol EVIS. 'I'hﬁfo]lnwiagla?ﬂz
slwm&:mgeafﬁghmdhwdﬂshghidmﬁmfwﬂnmmI‘nrmhqu;meﬂypmu!i
since October 1, 1997, mmmmmmmmmgmml
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COMMON STOCK
Fiscal Quarter Ended: High Low

30, 1999 § 0910 0.420
June 30, 1999 1.280 0460
March 31, 1999 0.875 (180
December 31, 1998 0375 0063
September 30, 1998 0813 0313
June 30, 1998 F.038 0.688
March 31, 1998 1.281 0.656
December 31, 1997 0.750 0406

Trading in eVisions commoa steck is currently conduciad in the mNA.SI:fAQ over-the-counter market
in what is commonly refemred to-as the electronic bulletin board or the “pink sheets.™ As a resalt, an
investor may find it more difficult to disposeolnrmdnaiuacmntequnaﬁmsasmlbcma-rh?i va.lue'ut
eVision's common stock. Tn addition. eVision is subject o a nule promulgated by the Commission, which
provides that vasious sales practice requirements are imposed on brokesfdealers who sell eVision's
common stock 10 persens other than established customers and accredited investors. For these types of
transactions, the hroker/dealer hac to make a special suitability determination for the punchaser and have
received the purchaser’s written consent 1o the transactions prior o sake. Coumqaaﬂly,_ﬂs: rile may have
an adverse effect on the ahility of brokeridealers to sell eVision’s common stock, which may affect the
ability of purchasers to sell eVision's common stock in the market,

(b} Holders. As of September 30, 1999, eVision had approximately 900 holders of record of irs
commeon stock.

() Dividends. eVision has not declared cash dividends on s commeon stock since its inceptica and

eVision does not anticipate paying any dividends in the foresseable future. ¢Vision is currently precluded
from paying dividends on its common stock by 2 convertible debentere agreement.

(d)  Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.

In December 1997, eVision sold Heng Fung Finance Company Limited, now known as Online Credit
Limited {Online Credit) a ten year $4,000,000 10% Conventible Deb that is comvertible into shares.
of common stock of eVision at‘a price of $0.53125 per share until December 15, 2007, unless sooner
paids and an opiion to purchase a $11.000.000 Convertible Debenture that is convertible inlo: shares of
commaon siock of eVision at a price of 30,61 per share until ten years from the date of issue unless sooner
paid.  Subsequently, Online Credit partially exercised the option and punchased additional 10%
Convertible Debentures toealing 52,500,000, On September 23, 1998, Online Credit and eVision agreed
i amend the terms of the remaising 8,500,000 of the $11,000,000 0% Convertible Debentare by
increasing the interest rate 10 [2%, changing the conversion price o the lower of $IL35 or the fair market
value per share, and changing the defanll coaversion price to 3010 per share. On November 11, 1998,
Omline Credit partially exercised its option to purchase $8,500,000 of 12% Copvertible Debentures by
purchasing a 1,000,000 12% Convertible Debenture from eVision. As of September 30, 1999, Online
Credit had purchased a total of 38,000,000 in convertible debentures. During the year ended September
30, 1999, eVision issued 1.569.417 shares of common stock in payment of inferest on the coavernible
debentures. The interest on the convertible debentures acerued as of September 30, 1999 of $212.111
was paid with 428,583 shares of eVision's common stock subsequent to vear end.

The sales of the convertithle debentures and issvance of shares for interest were made in reliance upon the
exemption from regisiration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“1933
Act”). The purchaser had aceess, to full information concerning eVision. The centificates for the shares
and the convertible debentures coniain a restrictive legend advising that the shares and the convertible
debentures may not be offered for sale, sold or otherwise transferred without having first been registered
under the 1933 Act or pursuznt to an exemption from registration ender the 1933 Act.  No underwriters
were involved in the transaction.

Between May and September 1999, eVision issoed 110,500 shares of its Convertible Serics B Preferred
Stock 10 various investors.  eVision issued 25.500 shares of Convertible Series B Prefemed Siock in
exchange for 25,500 shares of Series B Preferred Stock and 85,000 shares of Convertible Series B
Preferred Stock were issved at a purchase price of $10.00 per share. The sales of preferred stock were
made in reliance epon the exemplions from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended and Rule 506 of Regalation D adopted under the 1933 Act. The purchasers had access
tor full infermation concerning ¢Vision and represented that they purchased the shares for the purchasers’
own accounts and not for the purpose of distibution. The cedificates for the shares contain a restrictive
fegend advising that the shares may not be offered for sale, sold or otherwise transferred without having:
first been registered vnder the 1933 Act or pursuant o an exemption from registration under the 1933 Acl.
American Fronteer was the underwriter for the offering and received a 10% commission in addition 1o a
3% non-acocuntable expense allowance and warranis.

On September 18, 1999, eVision issned Anthony R. Kay 350000 shases of common steck in
consideration of the settlement of a lawsuit, The § e of the co stock was made in reliance
upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 4{2) of the 1933 Act. Mr. Kay had access to
full information concerning eVision and represented that he accepted the common stock for his own
account and not for the purpose of distribution, The certificate for the common stock containg a
restrictive legend advising that the common stock may not be offered for sale, sold or otherwise
transferred without having first been registered under the 1933 Act or purspant 1o an exempiion from
registration under the 1933 Act, No underwriters were involved in the transaction.




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

On February 25, 1997, McLeod USA Publishing Compeny purchased from eVision the primary operating
a&sﬂsoftﬁmymim&rwihmcqﬂm.ﬂwmhﬂugmeawﬁcﬁm&ammﬂm—
recourse Joan from Meleod in acoordance with an option agreement On the same date, a thind party
purchased another directory from e'¥ision for approximately $202,000 in-cash. On September 15, 1997, 2
ﬂﬁMpmtsmrdnsedﬂluiwpﬁmnpuaMgmBufFMMmiﬂhgﬁmhe. for
approximately $421.000. On March 20, 199§, eVision sold the remaining net assets, which were not
prcwinﬂslyﬁeﬂﬁﬁdht\%muﬁﬂﬂdhﬂﬁnmmfmﬂmma{ﬂSﬂmd
eVision's common stock. As a result of these sales, the directory business and Fronteer Marketing
G:uup,hr.hmbwnmnmdfmadﬁmmﬁm&mﬂmshﬂumlkhwdfmﬂm.

On July 23, 1996, eVision sold its clearing operation 10 MultiSource Services, Inc. for $3.000,000, bar
included a $1.500,000 contingency in the form of a forgivable Joan payzble to MultiSource, plas the net
assets of the clearing operation. The loan was forgiven and recognized s an exiraordinary item net of tax
during the year ended September 30, 1998,

On April 26, 1995, ¢Vision acqaired the assets of RAFCO, Led. Asa resubt of this transactios, the former
sharehalders of RAFCO, soquired a $5% interest in eVision. Accordingly, the transaction was accounted
for a5 a “reverse acquisition” of eVision by RAFCO using the purchase method of accounting. eVision's
assets and lishilities prior to the transaction were adjusted to their fair market valoe as of the date of the
business combination. eVision's operations are included in the consolidated financial statements
beginning May 1, 1993, the effective date of the business combination. As a result of the reverse
acquisition accounting, historical financial statements presented for periods prior to the basiness
combination date include the consolidated assets, labilities, equity, revenoes, and expenses of RAFCO
only.

The following is selected consolidated financial data (in thousands, except per share data) for eVision as
of Sepiember 30, 1999, 1998, 1997 and 1996 and for the years then ended and as of and for the nine
months ended September 30, 1995, This information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements.

Nime: moaths
Yeor ended endod
Seprember 30,
1995 1998 1997 1996 1995
Reveame 5 3493 20387 25,100 21,360 13,153
Loss from continuing operstions 3189 {6.979) (1,990 99y (B
Loss o sale of @Esooetinued operations, net of - 250 (66T} == .
mcome fax benefit of $160 and $410 for 1998
and 1997, respectively
Loss from discomtinned  operations, net of - 1159) L] 11.369] (10865
income tax bemefit of $102 and 5432 for 998
and 1997, respectvely
Extracedinary fem, net of income taxes of
$585,000 o 915 - - —
Preferned stock dissdend {48} - — = =
Nt loss applicable to sharcholders 3237 (AT (3456) [2418) {1 925y
Basic carnings (loss) per onammon share:
Costinuimg operasSons 5 (0B) [V Ei] M E2) (0A0T) (R0
Discontmoed operatsons:
LLoss qin sale of discontinsed operationg — flakind] (0L . =
s fimm discostinued opersions — (o (D05} (0100 an
Excraordinasy isem e .06 - - —
TFota] 5 08 (L] (21 GLETY (D2
Working cepital $ 15477 10076 159 4,591 4.130
Totz! assets 5 1270 15371 11003 14524 17252
Tuodal long-terem lishilizies 5 15871 14,864 3732 FAe2 1060
Tiotal stockholders equity {deficit) § (350 (3iM3) 3,352 6086 S442
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATION
Results of Operations

Year ended September 30, 1999 compared to year ended September 30, 1998

Revenue for the vesr ended September 30, 1999 was §34,193,262, an increase of 56,805,958 or 24.9%
over revenue of $27,387,304 for the year-ended Scptember 30, 1998. The increase primarily relates to
increased brokerage commmissions of $2.430,194; an increase in trading profits of 5679.227; increased
computer hardware and software operations revenoe of $1,250.948; increased interest income om
investments of $1.411992 and a gain on the sale of sssets of 52129864, offset by a decrease in
investiment banking activity of $928.080.

Tke increase in brokerage commissions of $2,430,194 is des primarily to an increase in commission
aciivity. Ticket tramsactions increased approximately 49% for the vear ended September 30, 1999
compared to the year ended September 30), 1998, This was pertially offset by a decrease in the average
commiission per transaction ticket of 17%. The primary reasons for the increased activity were genesal
marked conditions and positive results from AFFC’s sesearch recommendations that were acted upon by
customers. In addition, branch offices opened during the year ended September 30, 1998 were open for
the entire currend vear.

Trading profits increased $679.227 due primarily to general market conditions, as well as increases in
positions in securities in which American Fronteer, eVision's securities brokerfdealer, makes a market.

Computer hardware and software revenues for the year ended Sepsember 34, 1999 increased primanly
doe to a hardware system wperade by a customer and software enhancements to proprictary. software
products for custonsers.

During the year ended September 30, 1999, eBanker invested in debt securities of various corporations
that are traded on foreign stock exchanges. The debt securities camry a premium redemption value over
the face ameont of each secority. If the securily were held until maturity, eBanker would receive a
guaranteed premium above the face value. The purchase discount and the premium for holding each
security o matwrity were being accreted to interest income over the remaining life of the secuzity.
Interest income on the investmments in debl securities for the year ended September 30, 1999, was
$1.411992. During the year ended September 30, 1999, eBanker decided 1o change ifs investment
strafegy with respect to the bond investments 1o systematically sell these securities. Therefore, they have
been classifisd as available-for-sale and unrealized gains have been recognized as other comprehensive
income. Realized gains of $447,864 are incheded in gain on sale of assets,

The nei loss fior the year ended September 30, 1999 includes an unrealized loss of $65.315 on cenain
forcign held investments for the year ended September 30, 1999, compared to an unrealized loss of
$1.751.792 on certain foreign held investments for the year ended September 30, 1998. A majority of this
activity in 1908 related to eVision's investment in approximately 122,084,000 common shares of Online
Intemnational that were purchased in the open market by Fronteer Capital. Dunng the year ended
September 30, 1999, ¢Vision sold Froneer Capital and the unrealized gain of $1,682.000 on these irading
securities was reclassified to gain on sale of assets.

Investment banking revenues of $1,299.209 for the year ended September 30, 1999 decreased $928.080
from the year ended September 30, 1998 due primarily 1w the decreased participation in corporate finance
underwriings.

The increase i brokerdealer commissions expense was $H0.992 or 0.9% fos the year ended Seplember
30, 1999 compared to the increase in brokerage commission and investment banking revenue combined
of §1,502,114 or 8.8% for the vear ended September 30, 1999 over the year ended Sepiember 30, 1998,
The lower ¢xpense percentage increase reflects adjusiments to branch manager ovemides and other
payouts tovcorrelate closer to actnal production results and the markes.

Interest expense on the convertible debentures of eBanker for the year ended Septermber 30, 1999 was
$1,012.956 compared 10 $84,031 for the year ended September 30, 1998, Most convertible debentures
were cuistanding for a shorier perod of time in 1998 than in 1999 which accounts for the increased 1999
inferest expense.

The increase in general and adminisirative expenses for the year ended September 30, 1999 of 32,076,219
or 15.5% over the year ended September 30, 1998 reflects increased expenses associated with new branch
openings in San Francisco zmd New York Ciay.  Although the new offices were opened during 1998, they
were notopen for the entire year as they were in 1999,

Inberest expense to related panty of $827,527 increased for the vear ended September 30, 1999 from the
amount of $388,129 for the year ended September 30, 1998 as a result of the convertible debentures
issued to Omline Credit during 1998. These convertible debentures were outstanding for the full 1999

perind.

The minority interest in (eamings loss represents the minority interest investments in Q6 Technologies
and cBanker.

The loss from discontinued operattons for the year ended September 30, 1998, represents the loss on sale
and pet loss from operating activity of eVision"s directory and telemarketing businesses of which all of
the primary operating assets were sold during 1998,

The extraordinary item for the year ended September 30, 1998 represents the recognition of the forgivable
loan © MultiSource of 51,560,000 ret of income taxes of $385,000.

Year ended September 30, 1998 compared to vear ended September 340, 1997

Revenue for the year ended September 30, 1998 was 827,387,304 compared 1o revenue for the year ended
Sepremsber 30, 1997 of 525,100,414, This represents an increase of $2.286.890 or 95%.

The trcrease is primarily due w the increase in brokersge commissions of $983.810 or 7%, an increase of
51,472,136 or 21'% in compder hardware and software sales offset by a decrease in investmem banking
activity of $776,505.

The increase in brokerage commissions is primarily the result of the additienal offices opened during the
previons fiscal year being open for the entire year ended September 30, 1998, The increase in computer
hardware 2nd sofiware revenué is primarily due 1o additional contracts for software development and
increased hardware sales. Certain of the software development contracts were for the purposes of
ensuring customers are Year 2000 compliant.

Brokeoifealer commissions expense for the year epded September 30, 1998 were $10,521.902, an

increase of 5233,138 or 2% aver expenses of $10,268.764 for the year ended Seprernber 30, 1997, This
increase comelates (o the increase in broker commissions, The 2% increase in commission expense

.|



mﬂw?%imhmmnﬂs&iﬂnm@bmﬂm&aﬁm@uﬁmﬁcmmmr
overrides and broker pavouts.

Computer cost of sales for the year ended Sepiember 30, 1998 were 57,979,162 compared to 55,767,136,
fior the prior year. This increase of §2.212,026 or 38% relates 1o increased sales and costs associated with
assuring that proprietary software is Year 2000 compliant.

General and administrative expenses were $13.359.245 for the year ended September 30, 1998 or
€2 104,498 greater than gereral and administrative expenses of $11.252,747 for the year mdad
September 30, 1997, This increase of 0% is primarily attributable to the prior year branch openings
being in operation for the entire year ended September 30, 1998, and the new branches opened during the
year ended September 30, 1998, During the year ended September 30, lM.tthansasCity S‘tan
Francisco and New York City branches were opened, mmmmmmmm
e@;pems:sispa:ﬁali*gnﬁsﬁbfadeuminIegatfucxpeﬂseandmbiﬁaﬂmmnimnfm-imm
the vear ended September 30, 1998

Ammﬁmmﬁmﬂ,ﬂw.ﬂﬂmmﬂemmw&ﬂimm:h
December 1997 was nsed 1o purchase approximately 122,084,000 shares of the common stock of Online
International in open market transactions en the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. For the year ended

30, 1998, eVision had recognized an unrealized loss of $1.573,793 on the investment in
Online International,

Depreciztion and amortization expense for the year ended September 30, 1998 of $389.234 represents an
increase of $50,289 or 15% over the amount of $338,945 for the year ended September 30, 1997, The
increase is primaily due & the addition of the new branch offices.

Interest income increased $150.502 or 100% from §150,203 for the vear ended September 30, 1997 to
§300,705 for the yedr ended Scptember 30, 1998, This is due to increased cash halances resulting from
the convertible debenmre issues during the year ended September 30, 15998, Interest expense to a related
party relates 10 the convertible debentures payahle to the Online Intemational relaied entities.

The loss from discontinued operations and loss on sale of discontineed operations represents activity for
the remaining assets of the directory and telemarkeling business and the final sale of the assets of these
businesses, which were not previously identified by eVision as part of discontinued operations.

The minority interest in (eamings) loss of $129,363 for the year ended September 30, 1998 represents the
minority shareholders” interest in Secutron’s loss for the year.

Liguidity and Capital Resources

As of Septerber 30, 1999, eVision had $7.593,772 in cash and cash equivalents and $15,427,043 in
wiorking capital. Its current rafio is 4.1:1. Cash flows used by operating activities during the year ended

30, 1999, totaled $4.063.443. Cash flows used for investing activities during the year were
54,541 623, and consisted primarily of purchases of debt securities of 34,635,275, less sales of debd
securities of 54,306,603, and advances oa notes receivable of $3,700,000, Cash fows from financing
activities during the year of S7.086,186 consisted primarily of net proceeds from the issuance of
comvertible debentures of $534,953; net peocesds from the sale of eBanker securities of $4.678,754; the
issuance of e converible debenmures to a refated party of S1,000,000; and $880.147 of net proceeds
from a private placement of eVision's preferred stock.

In May 1999, ¢Vision commenced a private placement of 1,500,000 shares of its Convertible Series B
Preferred Stock at & price of 310,00 per share. The pet procesds were intended to be used 10 fund
working capital and acquire ciher securities broker/dealers. Throagh September 30, 1999, eVision sold
110,500 shares of Convenible Series B Preferred Stock for net proceeds of $860, 147, ret of offering costs
of $244 853, eVision then discontinued its private placement of the Comvenible Series B Preferred Stock
znd, on Septertber 27, 1999, commenced a second private placement of 1,500,000 shares of its newly
designated Conventible Series B-| Preferred Stock. eVision is in the process of exchanging the 110,500
shares of Convertible Series B Preferred Stock sold in the second offering for an equal snount of shares
of Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock.

On March 3, 1999, ¢Banker commenced a second private placement of 3,000,000 units, each consisting
of one share of common stock and ane detachable warrant 1o purchase one share of common stock. The
offering closed in July 1999, In the private placement, 99,444 anits were isswed resulting in proceeds of
$4,678,754, net of offering costs of 5717912, For participating in the offering American Fronteer
reccived five vear wamanis 1o purchase 89,944 chares of eBanker's common stock , received a
commission of 1066 of the procesds and received a non-sccoumtable expense allowance of 3% the
proceeds.

In April 1998, Fronteer Capital, a formerly wholly ewned subsidiary of ¢Vision, and Online Credit
committed to provide to Giobal Med Technologies, Inc. (Global Med) fines of credit for up to 31,650,000
and $1.500,000, respectively, for a total combined loan commitment of $3.150,000 over the following
pwelve months. Fronteer Capital sabsequently assigned its commitment to ¢Banker. During fiscal 1999,
eBanker purchased 51,000,000 of Online Credit’s outstanding loan of $1,500,000. The joans bear inierest
catculated at a rate of 12% per annum and will matsre-April 15, 2000. As of September 30, 1999, Giobal
Med had drawn $2,650,000 on these lines of crediv

In May 1999, eBanker extended Global Med a $750,000 bridge loan commitment of which §750,000 was
drawn as of Sepiember 30, 1999, Outstanding principal amounts under the loan are dwe December 31,
1999 and accroe at an interest rate of 12%. On October 4, 1999, eBanker extended 1o Global Med a
£2.000,000 bridge loan commitment, of which a total of $600.000 was drawn in October and NMovember
1999, Ouistanding principal amounts under the loan are due Apeil 12, 2000 and accroc at an interest fate
of 12%.

eVision previously sold Online Credit a ten year $4,000,000 10% Convertible Debenture that is
coavertible into shares of common stock of eVision and an option to purchase an 511,000,000 12%
Convertible Debenture that is convertible into shares of commeon stock of eVision, As of September 30,
1999, Online Credit had purchased a total of $8,000,000 of convertible debentures, of which $1.000,000
had heen purchased during the year ended September 30, 1999, The option to purchase the $11.000,000
12% Convertible Debenture has $7,000.000 available remaining under option. The principal is due in ten
years, except for one installment of $500.000 that was doe March 1999, The installment due dafe was
extended to March 2000, eVision paid Online Credit a fee of 3%, or 525,000, paid in 44,092 common
shares of eVision for the extension as determined by the averige closing bid price of eVision's commaon
stock for 15 business days prior o March 23, 1999, or $0.567 per share.

Tn July 1999, ¢Vision sold the stock of Fronteer Capital for $3.000,000 which was received in the form of
$150,000 cash at chosing and a promissory noie in the emoant of 52,850,000, due in one year and bearing
interest at | 4% per annup.

A majority of eVistons assets are highly liguid, consisting mainly of assets that are readily convestible

into cash. Changes in the amount of securities owned by eVision and receivables from brokers or dealers
and clearing organizations directly affect the amount of eVision™s financipg requirements.
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Maznagement believes that eVision's cash flows from operations, the possibility of additional purchases of
convertibibe debentures by Online Credit, proceeds received and expected 1o be reoeived ﬁmlhesal:zut’
Conversiie Series B-1 Preferred Stock and cash on hand will be sufficient w fund its debd. service,
g:{pecmd capital costs andl other Equidity requirements for the foreseeable fumre.

AFFC is subfiect to the SEC"s net capital rules. AFFChshis:urEley_opa-aacdin_:%cessad'lhﬁnﬁninﬂm
requirements. A1 September 30, 1999, AFFC's net capital exceeded the SEC's minimum reguiremsnt by
$169.273.

Inflation

The effect of inflation on eVision™s operations is not material and is not anticipated 1o have any material
effect in the future.

Recently Issued Financial Accounting Standards

In June 1998, the FASE issued Statement Nou 133, Accounting for Derivative Instritments and Hedging
Activities. This statement was effective for all fiscal quarters beginning after Juse 15, 1999 In July
1999, the FASB issued Statement No. 137, Accounting for Derivarive Iﬂsmammandﬂedgiﬂ,‘g Activities
—Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Satement No. 133, This Statement defers the effective date of
Siatermnent No. 133 toall fiscal quarters of all fiscal years beginning after Juze 13, 2000. eVision has not
completed its evaluation of the impact of this Statement.

Year 2000

TI'ner‘.!BE{Jﬁmmfmmmefmmmmymwﬂmm:ﬁghﬂtypmgmmﬂdmgm
digiﬁmdvamaﬂfm:digiamidtnﬁfyiheapplizblnymr. Whmlﬁ;yeﬂzﬂlﬂmlhﬁesystﬂm
mu[diamrpmtlheywaswﬂﬂmbﬁlhmm. Uinless hardware, system software and applications are
mnm&dmbc?wlﬂﬂﬁmmpﬁam.mnqﬂmmddwdeﬁmﬂqmﬁdm]dﬂgem&
miscaleelations and create operational problems. Various systems could be affected ranging frum
complex information technology (IT) computer systems 1o non-IT devices such as an individual
machine’s programmhle logic controller.

Toadd:mlﬁisissue.e?isbndweﬁmedacmpnmpdmimh@gﬂefm:a:&umfamm&mnguf
intermz] resources and, a5 deemed necessary, thind party experis. m;ﬂmnfﬂnepm:nd_udaﬂ:
conducting inventory of the affecied technology and assessing the i‘rnpac!.-af :]'-: Year 2000 issue;
developing solution plans; modification or replacement; testing and c:a-hﬁmim and ~developing
contingency plans, Aﬂsig:ﬁﬁmmmmufsuimmihardwamd'emehawmm,
eVision expects to be Year 2000 compliant.

«Vision relies on thind-pany suppliers for many services and eVision may be adversely impacied |I’|I:35&
supplicrs have not made the necessary changes to their own systems and products saccessfully and n a
timely manner. eVision worked with the Securities Industry Association to ascertain the state of ‘l’ear
2000 readiness andier compliance of eVision’s suppliers. ¢Vision implemenied a plan to communicate
with its customers and suppliers on this issue in an effort to minimize any potential Year 2000 compliance
impact; bowever, it is not possible to guarantee their compliance.

Wbmalwﬂﬂflhemgrainmcsﬁmmdmbckssdmﬁ&ﬂm.nfwhbchmhadbammﬂ
throagh September 30, 1999

Management of eVision believes it had an effective program in place to resolve the Year 2000 issues.
Nevertheless, since it is not possible to anticipate all possible futare outcomes, especially when third
parties are invalved, there could be circumstances in which eVision would be unable to take customer
ordess, or collect payments. In addition, disruptions in the ecopomy generally resulling from Year 2000
jssues conld materially adversely affect eVision, eVision could be subject to litigation for computer
systems product failure, for example, equipmen: shutdown or failure o properly date transaction records.
The amount of potential liabiliey and lost revenue cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

eVision completed its contingency plan. eVision's contirgency plan includes the use of cellular phomes
in the event of local telephone system fine failures, manaal tracking of trading and inventery positions.
direct calls to the clearing organizations in the event of online system failures and use of the Intemet for
delayed quotations in the event of real-fime quotations system failures. eVision's payroll and accounting
software have been obtained from natiosal vendors who have certified their products as Year 2000
compliant,

General

The foregoing discussion contains certain forward-looking siatersents within the meaning of Section 21E
of the Secnrities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which are intended 1o be covered by the safe harbors
created therely, These statements include the plans and objectives of management for fifure operations,
including plans and objectives relating to expansion and the general development of the business of
eVision. The forward-looking staiements included kerein are based on current expectations that imvolve
mmerons riths and wecertainties., Asvtamptions relating to the foregoing involve judgments with respect
1o, among oer things, future ecomomic, competitive and marke: conditions and furere  business
decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible o predice accnrately and many of which are beyord the
contrel of eVision. Although eVision believes that the asnemptions wnderiving the forward-looking
shatements are reasonable, any of the assmprions could be inaccurate and, therefore, there can be no
assurance that the forward-looking statements included in this Annual Repore on Form 10-K will prove 1o
be gocwrate. In light of the significant uncertainties inferent in the forward-looking statements included
herein, the inclusion of such information shonld mor be regarded as a represemtation by eVision or any
other person that the objectives and plans of eVision will be achieved.

TTEM TA. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk generally represents the risk of loss that may result from the potential change in the value of a
financial instrument as a result of fluctuations in irterest and currency exchange rates, equity and
commaodity prices, changes in the implied volatility of interest mtes, foreign exchange: rates, equity and
commodity prices and also changes in the credit ratings of either the issuer of the financial instrument or
its related coumry of erigin. Market risk is inherent to many non-derivative financial instroments, and
accordinaly, the soope of eVision's market risk management procedures includes all market risk sensitive
financial instruments. -eVision’s exposure 10 market risk is directly related to its rofe as a financial
intermediary in customer-related transactions and to fis proprictary trading activities.

eVision is an active market maker and conducts Mock-trading activities in the listed and over-the-counter
equity markets, In connection with these activities, eVision may be requined to maintain significant
inventories in order to ensare availability and to facilitate cestomer order flow,

eVision faces two types of market risk: foreign exchange rate risk wmd equity prce nisk.

Foreign Exchange Rate Rick. Foreign exchange rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in
foreign exchangs rates will impact the value of financial instrumenis. When £Vision buys or sells o
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financial instrument demominated in 2 cwrrency other than US dollars, exposure exists Elm_a mel open
currency position. eVision is then exposed 1o a risk that the exchange rate may mowve against it Al
September 30, 1999 and 1998, the cumency creating foreign currency risk for eVision was the Hong Kong
dollar.

Equity Price Risk. ¢Vision is exposed to equity prme risk as a consequence of making markets in-equity
secoritizs, Bquity price risk resulis from changes in the level or volatility of equity prices, which affect
the value of equity securities or instruments that derive their value from a particular stock, a hasket of
stocks or a stock index. - eVision attempts to reduce the risk of loss inherent in its inwentory of equity
securities by entering into trensactions designed 1o mitigate eVision's market risk profile.

eVision ulilizes a wide variety of market risk management methods, including: limits for wh trading
mmmmﬂwsmmmammﬂs daihpufamdlmmmmammanpms
aged inventory position reports; #nd independent werification of inventory pricing.  Additionally,
management of each trading department repords positions, profits-and losses, arudu-aaﬁn,m-cgm ]
manzgement on a daily basis. eVision believes that these procedures, which stress timely communication
between trading depariment management and senior management, are the most important elements of the
risk managemend process.

Efforts 1o further strengthen eVision's management of market risk are contimous, and the enhan@?ﬂ
of risk manigement systems is-a priority of eVision, This includes the l:iei-i.‘iﬁpﬂ'lﬂlt of quantitative
methods, profit and loss aed variance reports, and the review znd approval of pricing models.

The tahle bebvw provides a comparison of the carrying amount 1o the fair valoe of the securities owned by
eVision that are classified as trading and available for sale securities.

Sepremiber 30, 1999 Sepiember 30, 15998
Fair Value Carryizs Value Fair Valpe Cazrying Valne:
Fonpign Exch Ruse Rick _—
ﬂ;ﬁqm 3 622171 21171 1,066,972 1,066,572

Delx Secusisies 1.993 258 1991258 - ~—
Exuiry Frice Ritk: .

Exquity Secumies® L4557 1495701 1,688,083 168885
Credit 4
—@&Sm srities 1,995,258 1.991.758 - -

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, securities classified as trading securities are
marked-to-market and the resulting unrealized gain or loss is reflected in the statement of operations, For
the year ended September 30, 1998, ¢Vision recognized unrealized losses of $1.7300917 on the equity
socurities denominated in Hormg Kong dollars.  During the year ended September 30, 1999, eVision
realized a gain of approximately $1.682.000 on the equily securities denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The. Consolidated Financial Statements that constitute Item § are amtached at the end of this Annual Repon
on Form 10-K. An Index to these Consolidated Financial Statements is also inchuded in Item 14 (a} of
this Annial Repon on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On September 3, 1999, KPMG LLP was dismissed as the independent accountants of eVision. KPMG
LLP acted as the independent accountams for eVision for the years ended September 30, 1998 and 1997.
KPMG LLP’s reports on eVision®s financial statements for the past two years ended September 30, 1908
and 1997 did pot conatain an adverse opinion or dischaimer of opinion and were not modified as
uncertzinty, audit scope or sccounting principles.

The decision to change accountants'was approved by eVision's boand of directoss.

During ¢Vision™s two most recent fiscal years and subsequent interim period up to the date of the change
man&w&mmﬂmﬂmmmd&gmmmwuhKPMGLLmeymofmng
principle or practices, fnancial statement disclosure, or awditing scope or procedure, which
disngreement(s}, if any, whether or not resalved to the satisfaction of KPMG LLP, would have caused
KPMG LLP to make a reference to the subject matter of the disagreement(s) in connection with its
reparts.

On Sepiember 13, 1999, «Vision engaged the accounting finm of Deloitte & Touche LLP as eVision's
independent accountants for the year ended September 30, 1999, Deloitte & Touche LLP also are
independent accountants for Online International.  Dwring eVision's two most recent fiscal years and
subsequent fiscal interim period up to the date of the engagement of Deloitte & Touche LLP, eVision did
rot consult with Deloitte & Tooche LLP with regard to any matter comceming the zpplication of
accouning principles i any specific transactions, either planned or proposed, or the type of andit opinion
that might be rendersd with respect to eVision's financial statements.




PARTIN
TTEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
(a) Identification of Directors. The present term of office of each director expires at the next annual

meeting of shareholders and when his successor has been elected and qualified. The name, position with
eVision, age of each director and the period during which each director has served are as follows:

Name and Position in eVision Age Director Since
Fai H. Chan 55 1997
Chairman. President and Director
Robert H. Trapp H 1997
Managing Director,
President of American Fronteer

Financial Corporation
Jefirey M. Busch 42 1998
Director
Robert Jeffers, Jr. 5 1995
Director
Kwok Jen Fong 50 1998
Director
Tony T. W. Chan (1) 25 1999
Diirectior

{13 Tony T. W. Chan is the son of Fai H. Chan.

{b) Tdentification of Executive Officers. Each axecutive officer holds office until his successor is duly
appointed and qualified, until his death or resignation or wntil he shall be removed in the manner provided
by eVision's bylaws, eVision's corrent executive officers, their ages, positions with eVision and pesiods
during which they served are as folfows:

Name of Executive Officer and Position in eVision Age Dfficer Since
Fai H. Chan 55 Febraary
Chairman of the Board and President 1998
Robert H. Trapp 44 February
Managing Direclor and President of Amerécan Fromteer 1598
Gary L. Cook
Chief Financial Officer; Secretary and Treasurer 41 Febnsary
1998

There was no arangement or understanding between any executive officer and any other person pussuant
to which any person was selected as an executive officer.

fic) Identification of Cerfain Significant Employees. Mot applicable.

(d) Family Relationships. Tony T. W. Chan is the son of Fai H. Chan.

{e} Business Experience.
Background. The following is a hrief acoount of the business experience during the past five years
of each director and executive officer of eVision:

Name of Director
or Officer Principal Occupation During the Last Five Years

Fai H. Chan Director of eVision since December 26, 1997; Chainman and
President since February 1998, Mr, Chan is the Chairman and
Managing Director of Online International and has been a
Director of Online International since September 2, 1992, Mr.
Chan was elected Managing Director of Online Intemnational
on May 1, 1995 and Chairman on June 3, 1995.  Online
Intermational’s primary business activities: include real estate
investmeny and development, merchani banking, the
manufacturing of bailding material machinery, pharmaceutical
products and retail fashion.  Mr. Chan has been the President
and a Director of Asia SvperNet Corporation and its
predecessos, which previously owmed various industrial and
real estate companies, since June 1994 and Chicf Executive
Officer thercef since June 1993; a Director of Imira-Asia
Equities, Inc., a merchant banking company, since June 1993;
Executive Director of Hua Jian International Finance Co.,, Lid.
From December 1994 until December 1996; and Chairman of
the Board of Directors of American Pacific Bank since March
1988 and Chief Executive Officer thereof between April 1991
and April 1993. Mr. Chan is also a director of Global Med
Technologies. Inc.

Robert H. Trapp Direcior of &Vision since December 26, 1997, and the
Managing Director and member of the awdit committee of
eVision since Febroary 1998, and the President of Amecican
Fronteer Fimancial Corposation since Febmary 1998,  Mr
Trapp has been a director of Online Intemnational since May
1995; a2 Director of Imter-Asia Equities, Inc., a merchanl
banking company. since February 1995 and the Secretary
thereof since Aprl 1994; Director, Secretary and Treasurer
Asia SuperiNer Corporation and its predecessor,, which owned
various industrial and real estate companies; and the Canadian
operational manager of Pacific Concord Holding (Canada) Lid,
of Homg Kong, which operates in the comsumer products
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Jeffrey M. Busch

Robert Jeffers, Jr.

Kwok Jen Fong

Gary L. Cook

Toay T. W. Chan

induastry, from July 199 until November [967. Mr. Trapp is
also a director-of Global Med Technologies, Inc.

Director of ¢Vision since February 1998, Mr. Busch is a
member of eVision"s audit committee and has been a practicing
attomney for at least the last five years. Mr. Busch is also 2
director of Global Med Techrologies, Inc,

Director of eViston since February 1998. Mr, Jeffers is a
member of eVision"s audit committee and fas been 2 practicing
atomey for at least the East five years.

Director of cVision since Febreary 1998, Mr. Fong has been a
director of Online International since 1995. Mr. Fong has been
a practicing solicitor in Singapore for at least the last five
years. Mr. Fong is also a director of Gicbal Med
Technologies, Inc.

SecmlmjfandTmattnfe\rsnmmmm?imand
Chief Finaacial Officer of eVision since September 1998.

From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Cook was a principal of & small
vcuuutinwhid:h:ha.d majority ownership, and from 1982 to
1994, was a Sepior Mansger for KPMG LLP whene he
managed ail auditing services for several clients in various
financial and other industries, and developed and implemented
accounting, financial reporting and Securities and Exchange
Commission reporting systems for growth companies. Mr.
Conk is a director of Global Med Technobogies, Inc.

Director of eWision since 1999, In 1999, Mr. Chan became the
President of OLBroker.Com, Inc. Prior to Aprl 1999, Mr.
Chan worked as an Investment Banker for Fronteer Securities
(H.E.) Limited, a Hong Kong company in which Online
Internztional indirectly holds 2 minority interest. From 1998 to
April 1999, Mr. Chan worked 25 an Investmen! Banker for
Commerzbank, Global Equities. Hong Keng. From 1996 to
1998, Mr. Chan worked in eguity derivatives for Peregrine
Desivatives. Mr. Chan received a Bachelor of Commerce
degree in Finance with honors from the University of British
Columbia, In December [999, Mr. Chan was appointed 1o the
board of directors of Ghobal Mead Technologies, Inc.

Directorships. Mo director of eVision is 2 director of any other entity that has its securities
@ﬂmﬂdpﬂmﬁimmﬂﬁﬂtmﬁcmmﬂlgﬂ or subject 1o the

of Section 15(d) of the 1934 Act except Messrs. Fai H. Chan, Trapp, Busch, Foag,
Cook and Tony T. W. Chan who are direceors of Globsl Med Technologics. Inc. and Messes. Fai H.
Chen and Trapp who are directors of Asia SuperiNet Corporation.

(f} Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings. No event required to be reported bereunder has

occurred during the past five years.

{g) Promoters and Control Persons, Disclosure under this paragraph is not applicable to eVision.

Section 16{a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
To eViston's knowledge, during and for eVision's year ended Sepiember 30, 1999, there were no directors
or officers or more than 10'% sharchodders of eVision who failed to timely file a Form 3, Form 4 or Form
3. other than the following:
a. Fai H. Chan failed to timely file a Form 4 in which two transactions were reporied.
b Robert Jeffers, Jr. failed to timely file a Form 5 in which one transaction was reported.
¢. Kwok Jen Fong failed w timely file a Form 5 in which one transaction was reported.
d. Oufine International faibed to timely file four Forms 4 in which five transactions were reported and an
Amended Form 4, in which certain previously neporied transactions will be amended and ome
transaction by Heng Fung Capital [§] Pavate Limited will be reported.

2. Online Credit Failed to timely file two Forms 4 in which three transactions: were reported and an
Amended Form 4, in which certain previously reported transactions will be amended.

f. Heng Fung Capital [3] Private Limiled failed to timely file four Forms 4 in which five transactions

were reported and an Amended Form 4, in which cerlain previously seported transactions will be
amended and one tramsaction will be reported.
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Contracts and Termination of Em and Change-In-Control 4
&Vision had ro such contracts or agreements.

(i) Compensation Commiltee Interlocks and Insider Parficipation

eVision has no compensation committee and no officer or emmployee or former officer of eVision or any
of its subsidiaries during the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999 participated in deliberations with
eVision's Board of Directors concerning executive officer compensation.

Stock Option Plans

Effective September 30, 1988, as amended September 10, 1996, eVision adopted an Incentive Stock
Option Plan (“Plan"). The Plan authorized the granting of options 1o officers, directors, and employees of
eVision to purchase 600,000 shares of eWision's common stock. No options could be granted after
September 30, 1998, As of Seplember 30, 1999, options to purchase 128500 shares of £Vision's common
stock at $.625 per share through September 8, 2006, were outstanding and exercisable under the Plan.

On April 8, 1996, as amended on September 10, {095, eVisicn adopted the 1996 Incentive and
Nonstatutory Option Plan (*1996 Plan™). The 1996 Plan authorizes the granting of options o officers,
directors, employees and consulizns of eVision to purchase 1.250.0KK) shares of eVision's common stock.
No option may be gramed after Apeil 8, 2006. As of September 30, 1999, options to purchase 128,500
shares of eVision's commen stock at $.625 per share through Septemmber 9, 2009 were outstanding. OFf
mheﬁhm.ﬂpﬁmsmwmﬂ_ﬁﬂﬂﬁ:ﬁmﬂm}emdﬂﬁnlggﬁﬁm

On April 8, 1996, as amended on February 19, 1997 and on November 25, 1998, eVision adopted the
Septembar 1996 Incentive and Nonstztutory Option Plan (“September 1996 Plan”). The September 1996
Plan authorizes the granting of options to perchase 7.500,000 shares of eVision's common stock. No
options may be granted afier Apeil 8. 2006, As of September 30, 1999, options to purchase 6,963,833
shares of eVision's: common stock a1 $.20 1o 3100 per share through December 31, 2010 were
oatstanding. OF such options, opiions 1o purchase 2,140,222 shares were exercisable provided that
options totafing 700,000 issued 1o two officers of eVision will ot be exercisable until and unless basic
earnings per share of eVision for any fiscal year commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30,
1999, are equal to or exceed S0.10 per share.

As of September 30, 1999. eVision had also granted pongualified stock options to purchase 10,839,333
chares of eVisian's commion £tock 1o certain directors, officers and consultants at an exercise price of
between $0.20 and 30,70 per share. These options expire in 2008 and 2008 As of September 30, 1999,
£,000.000 of these options are exercisable.

Emplovee Stock Ownership Plan

On Seprember 22, 1989, eVision's Board of Directors adopied an employee stock ownership plan
("ESOP”} which provides in pertinent part that eVision may annually contribute tax deductible funds o
the ESOP, ai its discretion, which are then allocated o ¢Vision's employees based upon the employess’
wages in relation 1o the total wages of all employees in the ESOP,

The ESOP provides that more than half of the assets in the ESOP must consist of eVision's common
stock. TheESOPissinﬁnislemdbyahoardafmeesmﬂalhempﬁuisimuimadﬁmwﬁmﬁm,
huﬂ:afwhicﬁamappohﬁrdbyc\"isinn’sﬁmﬂinfﬁhﬂm. As of September 30, 1999, the ESOP
owned 4186872 shares of eViston's common stock and no other masketable securities. The shares are
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mnuihuﬁe@ﬂﬁmdimﬁimufﬂmﬂwﬂulﬂiﬁdm'hﬁmywmmwbﬁm. 1999, no shares
were contributed. Employees become vesied in the shares of eVision's common stock after six years in
ﬂaOP. Employees are 20% vested after two vears, vesting an additional 20% each vear up o 1005
affter six vears in the ESOP.

Savings Plan

eVision has two retirement saving plans covering all employees whao are over 21 years of age apd have
completed one year of eligibility service. The plans meet the qualifications of Section 401k) of the
Internal Revenue Code. Under the plans, eligible employees can contribute throagh payroll deductions up
to 13% of their base compensation. eVision makes a discretionary matching contribution equal to a
percentage of the employee's contribution. Officers panticipate in the plans in the same manner as other

eVision has no other banus, profit sharing, pension, retirement. stock purchase, deferred compensation, or
other inceniive plans. -
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT

[aMb) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management. The following table sets
forth as of December 15. 1999, the number of shares of eVision's omstanding common stock beneficially
owned by each of eVision's current directors and officers, sets forth the nuntber of shares of eVision's
common stock beneficially owned by all of eVision™s current direckors and officers as @ group and sets
forth the oumber of shares of eVision"s common stock owned by each person who owned of record, or
was known to own beneficially, more than 5% of eVisions outstanding shares of common stock

respectively:

Name and Address of Amount and Nature
Benefictal Orwner or Name of Beneficial
of Officer or Director Orwnership (1) Percent of Class
Fai H. Chan 52.661.5200 (2NN B0.8%

Bank of Communications Tower 10° Floor
231-235 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong 040

Roben H. Trapp 150,000 (3K -
1700 Lincoln Street, 32° Floor
Denver. Colorado 80203

Kwok Jen Fong 50,000 [4HS5) b
7 Temasek Blvd £43-03

Suntec Tower Ome

Singapore (38987

Jeffrey M. Busch 2000000 (63 Dy -
3528 Kennett Pike, Suite 206

Greenville, DE 19807

Roben Jeffers, Jr. 50,000 (T) g
6101 16® St SW Suire 511

‘Washingron, DC 20011

Tony T. W, Chan - iR
1700 Lincoln Street, 32° Floor

Denver, Colorado 80205

Gary L. Cook 146666  (B) G
1700 Lincoln Street, 32™ Floor

Denver, Colorado 80203

Al officers and directors 53268186 (9 B1.7%
A group (7 persons)

Online Credit International Limited £3.661.520 (9 66.9%
Bank of Communications Tower 10 Floor

231-235 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong 040
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Except as indicated below, each person has the sole voling andfor investment
power over the shares indicaged.

Includes B200,000 shires underlying stock options, of which 200,000 are
exercisable only if the basic eamings per share of eVision for any fiscal year
commencing with the fiscal year ended Sepiember 3, 1999, are equal to or
exceed $0.10 per share. Also includes 43,661,520 shares beneficially owned by
Online Credit International Limited. Mr. Chan is an executive officer, a director
and an 11% stockholder of Online International.

Consists of shares underlying stock options that are exercisable only if the basic
eamings per share of eVision for any fiscal year commencing with the fiscal
year ended September 30, 1999, are equal to or exceed 30,10 per share.

Messrs. Trapp and Fong are directoss of Online International, Messrs. Trapp and
Fong disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares beneficially owned by Online
International.

Consists of shares underlying stock options that are exercisable on only if the
basic eamings per share of eVision for any fiscal year commencing with the
fiscal vear ended September 30, 1999, are egual to or exceed $0.10 per chare.

Consists of shares underlying stock opfions tha are excrcisable only if the basic
eammings per share of eVision for any fiscal year commencing with the fiscal
year ended Seprember M, 1999, are equal to or exceed $0.10 per shiare.

Caomsists of shares underlying stock options that are exercisable only if the basic
camings per share of e¢Vision for any fscal year commencing with (he fiscal
year ended September 30, 1999, are equal to or excesd $.10 per share.

Consists of shares. underlying stock opiions, of which 80,000 are exercisable
only if the basic eamings per share of eVision for any fiscal year commencing
with the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999, are equal 1o or exceed $0.10 per
share.

Includes 35913487 shares underlying convertible debentures: owned or that
may be acquired upon exercise of an option. Online Intemnational is the parent
company of Heng Fung Capital {8} Private Limited (Heng Fung Privaiz). Heng
Fung Private is the parent company of Online Credit. 43,411,520 of the shares
beneficialiy owned by Culine Internatinal are beneficially owned by Heng
Fung Private, of which 38,718,379 of the shares are beneficially owned by
Omline Credit. OF the 38,718,379 shares beneficially owned by Online Credit,
35,913,487 of the shares are bencficially owned pursuant to 3 converible
debenture agreement.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
{a¥b} Transactions with Management and Others and Certain Business Relationships.
Global Meéd Technologies, Inc.

In April 1998, Fronteer Capital, formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of eVision, and Online Credit
Limited committed fo provide to Global Med lines of credit for up: to $1,650,000 and $1,500,000,
Tespectively, for a total combined loan commitment of $3,1500000 over the following rweive months.
Fromteer Capital subsequently assigned its commitment to eBanker. The loans bear intesest calculated at a
rate of 12% per annom and will mature April 15, 2000. As of September 30, 1999, Global Med had
drawn 52,650,000 on these lines of credit.

On October 7, 1998, eBanker, Online Credit, and Giobal Med entered into an agreement whereby
eBanker purchased, Online Credit sold and Global Med consented to the sale of $1,000.000 principal
anmntnl'l{:aasmadehyDniine&-edi:mﬁki:alMedalmgwilhawmtmwrchasemaggmgscaf
41000,000 shares of Global Med's common stock. eBanker paid Online Credit $1,100,000 for the loans
and warrant. TTBJmandmﬂmmwdbyeBaakﬁrmapuﬁmuIMmdumghm
pursaant to 2 joint boan commitment made by Omline Credit and Fronteer Capital (subsequently
transferred 1o ¢Banker) for the benefit of Giobal Med.

TIn May 1999, eBanker extended Global Med a S750,000 bridge loan commitment of which $750,000 was
drawn as of Seplember 30, 1999, Qutstanding principal amounts under e loan are doe December 31,
1999 and accrue ab an interest rate of 12%. On October 4, 1999, eBanker extended to Global Med a
$2.000.000 bridge loan commitment, of which $600,000 has been drawn. Outstanding principal amounts
under the loan are due Apeil 12, 2000 and accrue at an interest rate of 12%.

Lochup Anreement

On October 25, 1999, Global Med entered into a Lockup Agreement with eBanker and a Lockup
Agreement with eVision. The agreements provide that eBanker and eWVision will not, between October 25,
1999 and October 28, 2000, without Glohal Med's prior written conszat, publicly offer, sell, contract to
sell, grant any option for the sale of, or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, (i) wamrants to
purchase 9,000,000 shares of Global Med's common stock at S0.25 per share held: by eBanker or the
warrants fo parchase 1.000,000 shares of Glohal Med®s common stock at $0.25 per share held by eWision
;nd;‘ji]anyshmmmmmﬁlhﬂmmﬂmmmﬁ}dmmo&imahk
upan the exercise of the warrants; provided, however, that eBanker or ¢Vision may offer. sell. contract to
sell, grant an option for the sale of, or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Securities or ofher such
muﬁymiasmmmatufﬁhhk”edduﬁngmhpuﬁudi!ﬂmhuansauiuaismhnamandﬂt
transferes of such Securities or other securities or instruments agrees, pricr 1o such fransaction, to be
hoand by all of the provisions of the lockup agreements. In exchange for entering into the agreements,
eBanker and eVision were issued 450,000 shares and 50,000 shares of common stock of Global Med,

respectively.
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In addition, the agreemems provide (i) eBanker and eVision will not be restricted from disposing of the
Securities in the event that an unaffilisted third party commences a tender offer for the outstanding
common stock, and (i} eBanker and eVision will not be restricted from disposing of 450,000 and 50,000
shares, respectively, of the Securities in the aggregate if the closing sale price for the Globel Med
common stock on the principal market on which it then trades equals or exceads $5.00 per share for any
ten comsecutive trading day period preceding the: date of such sale, and (iii) thas there will be no
restrictions upon the ability of eBanker or eVision to exercise the warranis.

Caling Credit International Limited
Comertible Debentures

eVision previcusly sold Online Credit a ten year $4,000,000 10% conventible debenture that is convertible
info shares of common stock of ¢Vision atf a price of 3033125 per share umil December 15, 2007, ualess
sooner paid, and an option to purchase an $11.000.000 converiible debenture that was convertible inio
shares of common stock of eVision at & price of $0UG1 per share until ten yeass from the date of issue
unless sooner paid.  Subsequently, Online Credit partially exercised the option and purchased additional
10% convertible debentures totaling $2.500,000. On September 23, 1998, Online Credit and eVision
agreed 1o amend the terms of the remaining $5.500,000 of the $11,000,000 10% convertibie debenture by
increasing the interest rate to 2%, changing the conversion price to the fower of $0.35 or the fair market
value per share and changing the defauli conversion price te $0L10 per share. As of October 31, 1999,
Ouline Credit had purchased a total of $8,000,000 of convenible debenmures, of which $1.000.000 were
purchased during the year ended September 30, 1999, The option 10 parchase the $1 10000000 12%
convertible debenture has $7,000,D00 available remaining under option. The principal is due in ten years,
except for one installment of $500.000 that was due March 1999, The installment due date was exiended
to March 2000. ¢Vision paid Oaline Credit a fee of 5%, or 525,000, paid-in 44,002 common shares of
eVision for the extension as determined by the average closing bid price of ¢Vision"s common stock for
15 business days prior Lo March 23, 1999, or $0.567 per share.

Each 12% convertible debentare that Online Credit or its designee receives will bear interest at a rate of
12% per annum and interest only will be payable quarterly with the final payment of the entire unpaid
principal batance and all accrued and unpaid interest, if not sooner paid, due and payable five years after
the date of issuance. Interest is payable in cach or in shares of eVision's common stock a1 the election of
Online Credit or its designee. Each 12% converible debenture will be converibie. into shares of
eVision's common stock at a price equal 1o the lower of $0.35 or the market price of eVision's conmon
stock &t the time of conversion. In the case of default. the conversion price will be S0.I0 per share of
eVision's common stock.

Interest paymeats of $984,638 that were due through September 30, 1999, erising out of cowvertible
debentures. acquired pursuant to the convertible debenture agreement, were paid by the isszance of
1,598,000 shares of common stock. The values of the shares of common stock were determined in
accordance with the convertible debenture agreement.



Convenible Series B-1 Preferred Stock Dividend Guaranty

Oaline International has: guarsnteed through October 31, 2002, the payment of each annual B% cash
dividend on the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock that is being offersd by eVision if such dividend
is nod paid by eVision. In consideration for making such guaranty, 2¥ision issved an affiliate of Cnline
Internatinnal 250,000 shares of eVision's commen stock which had a vahee of $62,500 based en the
closing price of $0.25 per share of the common stock on the date of the agrcement. If Online
Tntermational s required 1o make payment as a result of its guaranty. Online Internatiosal or its designes
will receive a 12% convertible debenture equivalent 1o the amount that Oniine Intemational is required to
paymlhegtmﬂyunlﬁslhcmurc\fisimmgiﬁng Online International or ns designes the 12%
comvertible debenture would be deemed fo be an illegal disiribotion under the Colorado Business
Corporation Act. In such event, Online International or its designee would receive, instead of a 12%
convertible debenture, the number of shares of commion stock s s equal to the total amount of the
dividend paid divided by 0% of the convession price of the common stock as defined in the 12%
copvertible debenture. lugenem.lkwmvemioapimaflhemvmﬁblevaﬁﬂbewm
price of the commeon stock on the date of conversion.

Online Interpational has advised eVision that Online International would, at this time, have sufficient
ﬁqnilmsmpayonitsgmmyifitmmquimdmdnm. There are no assurances, however, that
Online Intemarional will have sulficient assets to pay on its guarsnty if it were required 1o do so im the
futnre.

Fronteer Capital, fnc.

Since January 1, 1998, Fronteer Capital, which received the proceeds of the 540000000 convertible
debenture purchased by Online Credit in December 1997 pursuant to the convertible debenture
apreemeni, used & portion of the proceeds o purchase shares of the common stock of Online Intemnational
in open market transactions on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Fai H. Chan and Robert H. Trapp are
the directors and officers of Fronteer Capital and are directors of Online Intemational, which owns Online
Credit. In addifion, Mr. Chan beneficially owns approximately 11% of the cutstanding common stock of
Oaline International. Fronteer Capital was sold by eVision in July 1999 for $3.000.000, which was paid in
the Form of 5150000 cash a1 closing and & promissory note in the amount of $2.850,000; due in one year
and bearing interest at a rate of 14% per annum.

eBanker Crrganization

1n March, 1999, the board of directors of Fronteer Development, with the approval of eVision, agreed o
cause Franteer Development to merge into eBanker USA.com, Inc., which was a Colorado corposation
formed for the merger. The merger was effective Mazch 4, 1999, As a result of the merger, the Fronteer
Development Class B Common Stock, which had 2 30 to | veting preference and was owned by eVision
{giving eVision 96% of the voting power and 465 of the equity interest), was exchaaged for an
equivalent number of shares of eBanker common stock. The eBanker commen stock has one vote per
share. After the merger, cVision held 46% of the voting and equity interest in eBanker. In addition, the
aﬂ[chﬁufhcuqmaﬁhﬂafeﬁmﬁadﬁignﬂadaﬁuﬂtﬂf%ﬁ?m&ﬁed Stock. The Series A
Preferred Stock gives the holder S06% of the vole in the election of Directors of eBanker. eBanker sold
the Series A Preferred Stock for 51,000 to eVision,

I —

O Technologies, lnc.

In June 1999, eVision entered ino an exchange and sale of stock agreement with Q6 Technologies.
Pmmloﬂmamm:?iﬁmagwdmuchang:isiﬂ,d%ﬂ&ﬁshnﬁdﬁeaﬂmmyﬂct
which represented 72.80% of the outstanding common stock. and 3100,000 for 5,555,556 shares of Class
B common stock of Q6 Technologies.

ﬁl.'l!bﬂﬂ_j']t_ Kay: a former officer, director and shareholder of Secutron, individually, and in conjonction
with his consulting company, ARK Consulting Services Inc., filed claims against. eVision. Secutron,
Mndkmgmﬁmnﬁnmmnandfmuﬁimdﬁmmﬂmmmmiﬁmdeﬁﬂmwm
entered into an agreement to settle the Brwsait. Pursuant to the terms of the settlement, Secutroat paid Mr,
Kay iim.[[ﬂ.hmhamle‘ﬁsinaisswdh{n Kay 550,000 shares of common stock. In addition, eVision
agreed o register Mr. Kay's <hares of common stock for resale. eVision and the other defendants also
guaranteed Mr, Kay would receive a net amoant of at Jeast $325,000 from the sale of the common stock,

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) (1} Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCTAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

_Page

Independent Auditors” Repons F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Sepiember 30, 1999 and 1998 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three year period ended

Septernber 30, 1999 F-S
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (loss) for the three year

period ended Seplember 30, 1999 F.7
Consolidated Statements of Stockhobders” Equity (Deficit) for the

three year period ended September 30, 1999 F-8
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three year period ended

September 30, 9499 F-9
Motes to Consnlidated Financial Staemenss F-12

ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ"ﬁm reised s mcluded nthe Comlidaed Franeta
(a} {2} Financial Statement Schedules. None.

(a) (3) Exhibits. See "EXHIBIT INDEX™ on page 45.

(b) Current Reports on Form §-K:

A Cwrent Report on Form 8-K dated Joly 30, 1999, was filed on Angust 5. 199 o repont a transaction

under [tem Errehﬁngmﬁe:disgnshiua of a subsidiary, The transaction was the sabz of the stock of
Fronteer Capital 1o 2n unaffiliated thind pany for 53,000,000 that was paid in the form of $150,000 cash
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and a $2.850,000 promissory note with interest at 14% per annum which matures in one year. Proforma
financial information and exhibits were filed under Iiem 7.

A Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 3, 1999, was filed on Sepiember 3, 1999, The Current
Repon contained information under Item 4 relating 10 Changes in Redisirant’s Independent Accountants.
The Current Report contained information rﬁgmﬂiﬂg:ﬁedbnnissalufl(ﬁiﬁﬁ?tstheh&pﬁﬂaﬁ
accountants foc eWision. A letter from KPMG was filed 25 an exhibit under Fem 7.

A Current Repont on Form 8-K dated September 13, 1999, was filed on September 14, 1999, The Current
Report contained information under lem: 4 relating to Changes in Registrant’s Independent Accountants.
The Current Report contained information regarding the appointment of Deloite & Touche LLP as the
independent accountanis for eVision for the year ending September 30, 1599,

A Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 18, 1999, was filed on September 27, 1999, The Current
Report contained information under Item 5. Other Events. The Current Report contained information
@mmmmmmmmmimmwmmmmuw
Anthony R. KaymdﬁkKConsalﬂngSew]m,Im_!ha{msﬁlndmininﬂ. 1948, in fhe District Court
for the City and County of Denver, Cotorado. The settlement agreement was filed as an exhibit under
Ttem 7.

{c) Exhibits: Included as exhibits are the flems in the Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to ﬂncratjpimrmu!‘.‘:‘acﬁ:m 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
Ias duly caused this report 1o be signed on jts biehalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly suthorized.

eVISION USA.COM, INC.

Dated: December 29, 1999 fsd Fai H. Chan
Fai H. Chan, Chairman and President

Dated: December 29, 1999 o Gagw L. Cook
Gary L. Cook, Secretary, Treasuzer;
Chief Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer

mmkmﬁmm&mﬁctﬂmﬂ, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates incloded.

Daed: December 29, 1999 fsf Fai H. Chan
Fai H. Chan, Director

Dated: December 28, 1999 s/ Robert H. Trapp
Robert H. Trapp, Director

Dated: December 29, 1999 Isf Jeffrew M. Busch
Jeffrey M. Busch, Director
Dated; December 29, 1999 s Kwok Jen Fong

Kwok Jen Fong, Director

Dated: December 29, 1999 s/ Roberi Jeffers, Jr.
Robert Jeffers, Jr., Director

Duted: Decernher 27, 1999 Jef Tony T. W. Chan
Toay T. W. Chan, Director
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
EXHIBITS
T
FORM I0-K

eVISION USACOM, INC.



— ey

Exhibit No.
Exhibit 2.1

Exhibit 3.1

Exhabit 3.1(i)

Exhibit 3.1{ii)

Exhibit 3. (i)
Exhihit 3.1(1v)

Exhihit 3:1(v)

Exhibit 3. [{vi)
Exhibit 3.1{vii)

Exhibit 3.2

Exhibit 101

Exhibit 10.2

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description and Method of Filing

Asset Purchase Agreement dated March 1, 1998, by and between eVision and
Fronteer Marketing Group, Inc. and Morth Country Yellow Pages, Inc. and
Dennis W. Olson (inoorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to eVision's Curreal
Report on Form 8-K dared June 22, 1998).

Anticles of Incorporation of ¢Vision (incorporased by reference 1o Exhibit 3.0
eVision's Anneal Report on Form I0-K for the year ended September 30,
1995).

Articles of Amendment to eVision's Amicles of Inoorporation dated Apnl 28,
1995 (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 3.0(i) to eVision's Current Repost
on Form 8-K dated May 9, 19935).

Articles of Amendment to eVision's Asticles of Incorporation: dated June 27,
1994 (incorporated by reference to Exhibat 3.06i) to eVision's Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1996).

Articles of Amendment to eVision's Articles of Incorporation dated October
15, 1998

Anticles of Amendment 1 ¢Vision's Articles of Incorporation dated November
17, 1998

Anicks of Amendment 1o eVision's Articles of Incorporation dated Apil 19,

1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 1o eVision's Quarterdy Report
on Form 10-0VA for the Quarter ended March 31, 1994

Articles of Amendment to eVision's Articles of Incorporation dated May 5,
1995

Articles of Amendment 10 ¢Vision's Articles of Incorporation dated. September
25, 1999

Restased Bylaws of eVision adopted February 14, 1996 (inoorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to eVision's Annual Reporn on Form 10-K for the year

ended September 30, 199%6).

Amended and Restated 1988 Incentive and Monstannory Stock Option Plan as
amended September 10, 1996 (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 w0
eViston’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
1996,

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 1o
eVision's Anmaal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30,
1996,
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Exhihit No.
Exhihit 10.3

Exhibit 102

Exhibir 105

Exhibit 1006

Extabit 107

Exhibit 108

Exhibit 109

Exhibit 10010

Exhibit 10.11

Exhibit 10012

Exhibit 1013

Description and Method of Filing

S01K) Plan and Amendment | thereto {incorporated by reference o Exhibit
10.3 o eVision's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September
30, 1996).

Amended 2nd Restatéd 1996 Incentive and Nonststory Stock Option Plan, as
amended Seplember 10, 1996 (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit [10.6 10
eVision’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Sepeember 30,
1906),

September 1996 Incentive and Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (incorporded
by reference to Exhibit 107 to eVision"s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended Seprember 30, 1996).

S4.000.000 105% Converiible Debenture Purchase Agreemen by and betwesn
&Vision and Heng Fung Finance Company Limited dated December- 17, 1997
{incorporated by refenence to Exlithiz 10.7 1o eVision's Annual Repost on Form
10K for the year ended September 30, 1596).

Amendment No. 1 1o $4.000,000 10% Convertible Debenture Puschase
Agreement by and between eVision and Heng Fung Finance Compeny Limited
dated Seplember 23, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibat 10.1 o
eVision's Camrent Report on Form 8-K dated September 11, 1998).

Amendment to the 54000000 10% Convertible Debenmure Ponchase
Agreement dated December 17, 1997 (incorporated by reference to Exchibit
1000 1o eVision's Fomm 10-0QYA for the quarter ended March 31, 1998).

Loan and Warrant Purchase Agreement by and between Heng Fung Finance
Company Limited, Fromeer Development Finance Inc. and Global Med
Technalogies, Inc. dated October 7, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to &Visson™s Anmuzl Report on Foom 10-K for the year ended September
30, 1998,

Assignment, Assumption and Comsent Agreement by and betwesn Global Med
Technologies. Inc.. Dr. Michael F. Ruxin, M.D,, Fronteer Capital Inc. and
Fromteer Developmens Finance Inc. dated September 11, 1998 (incorporsted by
reference to Exhibit 10,11 to eVision's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended September 30, 199€).

First Amendment to Fromseer Financial Holdings, Lid. September 1996
Tncentive and Monstamitory Stock Option Plan dated Febooary 19, 1997
fincorporited by reference to Exhibit 10012 to eVision's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 1998),

Ameadment No. 1 o $500,000 12% Convestible Debenture dated March 23,
1999 {incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ¢Vision®s Quarterly Report
mﬁxmtﬂ-@iurl}n{znﬁtumdadﬁardﬂl.l‘?%}.

Guaranty Asreement hetween eVision and Heng Fung Holdings Compary
Limited dated May 5. 1999 (incorporated by reference fo Exhibit 10:2 1o
eVision's Quarterdy Report on Form 1040 for the Quarter ended March 31,
1999).

Exhibit No.
Exhihiz 10,14

Exhibit 1015

Exhibia 10,16

Exhibit 10:17

Exhibit 10.18

Exhibat 10,19

Exhibat 10020

Exhibit 16

Exhibit 21

Exhibit 23.1

Exhibit 23.2
Exhibit 27

Description and Method of Filing

Second Amendment 10 the 1996 Incentive snd Nonstatstory Stock Option Plan
of eVision dated November 25, 1998 fincorporsied by refevence to Exhibit 10,3
o eVision's Quearterly Repont on Form [0-Q) for the Quanter ended Manch 31,
1999},

First Amendment to Loan Agreement amoeng Global Med Technologies, Inc.,
Michael I Ruxin, M.D., eBanker USACom. Inc. and Heng Fung Finance
Company Limited dated March 8. 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
104 to eWision"s Quanterly Report on Form: 10-Q for the Quarter ended March
31, 1999

Stock Purchase Agreement by and between eVision and Ladsleigh Investmenis
Limited, BVI. made as of July 3, 1999 {incorporated by reference to Exhibat
L1 weVision's Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 3, 1999),

Pledge and Escrow Agreement by and between eVision and Ladsleigh
Investments, BVL made as of July 3, 1999 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 1o eVisicns Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 5, 1999).

Promissory Note made by Ladskeigh Investments Limated, BV 1o eVision
dated July 30, 1999 (incorporated by reference 8o Exhibit 2.3 to eVision"s
Crurrent Report on Form 8-K dated Aoguest 5, 1999),

Exchange and Sale of Stock Agreement between eVision and Q6
Technologics, Inc. dated Jane 18, 1999 (mcomporated by reference 10 Exhibit
104 to eViston's Quanerly Report. on Form 1020 for the Quarser ended June
30, 1999),

Manzgement Agreement dated August 18, 19985 berween Fronteer
Development Finance Inc. and Fronteer Financial Holdings, Lul

Letier from KPMG LLP dated September 3, 1999 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 16 o eWision's Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 3,
19949,

Subsidiaries of €Vision.
Consent of Deioite & Touche LLP
Consent of KPMG LLP
Financial Data Schedule
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Independent Auditors” Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
eVision USA.Com, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of eVision USA.Com, Inc. and
Subsidiaries as of Sepember 30, 1999, mnd the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income {Yoss), stockholders' equity {deficit), and cash fows for the year ended Sepiember
30, 1909, These consolidated financial starements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility s to express an opinion on these consalidated financial statements based on our audil

We conducted our audil in accordance with generally accepted suditing standands. Those standards
mh%mﬂwpimaﬂpetfmmmenaﬁlwmhmmﬂkmmmmﬂwfmm
statemenis are free of matedal misstatement, An aodit inchedes examining. on a fest basis, evidence
sap;mﬁngﬂwamﬂmtsanddisclnsmwsinlbnfmmﬁalmls. An andit also includes assessing the
amnﬁngpﬁnﬁp&mmadmﬁﬁgﬁﬁmmﬁﬁmﬂﬁmwmasmusﬂﬂwjagm
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinien. the consolidated fnancial statements referred to above presend fairly, in all materal

 the financitl position of eVision USA.Com, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 1999, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended September 30, 1999 in confiermity
with generally accepted acoounting principles.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Denver, Colorado
December 21, 1999

F-1

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Direciors and Stockholders
eVision USA.Com, Inc.:

We have apdited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of eVision USA.Com, Inc. {formerly
Fromteer Financial Holdings Led.) and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 1998, and the related consolidased
statements of operations, comprebensive income (loss), stockholders” equity (deficit), and cash flows for
each of the years in the \wo-year period ended Seplember 30, 1998 These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's managemend. Our responsibility is to express =n
epinion on these consolidated financial statemients hased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepied anditing standands. Those standands
rapim&awﬂanmﬁpﬁfmaﬂ:aﬁhwdﬂﬁnmmahhmd:wwmwﬁmﬂ
staternents are free of material misstatement. - An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosares in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
mnﬁugyhmhﬂ&mdmﬂﬂgnﬂmaﬁm@hymgzmnuwﬂaswﬂmﬁrgk
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
OPLEROR,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present Fairly, in ail material
m,hﬁmﬂp&ﬁﬂo{eﬁﬁmﬁ&.%immﬂﬂuh&%aﬁ%ﬁaﬂ 1998, and
mmﬂmﬁmmmﬂmmﬂm&hmhu{mmﬂn the two-year perind ended
Septemiber 30, 1998, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP

Denver. Colorado
December 30, 1998



eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS;
Cash and cash equivalends (Note 1)
Certificate of deposit, restricted (Note 13)
Receivables from hrokers or dealers and clearing organizations
Trade receivables
(Orther receivables
Securities owned, a1 market valwe (Note 2)
Motes receivable (Node 3)
Motes receivable, related party (Note 4)
Investments in debt securitics, available-for-sale, at market valee (Note 5)
Other assets

Tedal current assets
PROPERTY, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, net (Note 6)

FINANCING COSTS, net of accumulated amortization
of S108.062 (Notes 7 and 100

OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS

Total assets

See accompanying notes t0 consolidated financial statements.

F3

September 30,

199 1958
§ 7593772 9112652
575,000 =
s 410,069
1009018 1157841
542,700 667425
1,495,701 1.688,085
3,150,000 =
3,400,000 ==
1,961,258 =
271026 261,606
0028884 13297678
1233360 1541031
917,812 -
550005 532,103
§ 22740051 15370912

eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY (DEFICIT)

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accoants payable and accrusd expenses (Note &)
Payabie to clearing drganiration

Cuorrem postion of bong-term debe and capital lease obligations (Noge 9)

Accred interest payable to related party (Note 1)

Currest portion of convertible debentmnes 1o related party (Notes 1] and 13)

Defereed revenne
her currem liabilities

Tonal curment liahelstbes

LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS,
net of curremt postion (Note 9)

CONWVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (Note 10)

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES TO RELATED PARTY
(MNotes 11, 13 and 14)

DEFERRED RENT CONCESSIONS

Toral lasbelities
MINORITY INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(Notes 1, 9, 10, 13, 13, 14 16.and 17)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) (MOTES 14 and 15):

Preferred Swock, 25,000,000 shares suthorized, $0.10 par value;
110,500 shares of Convertible Series B issued and outstanding

Common Stock: 100000000 shanes aathorized, $0.01 par walue;
19,838,299 and 17,140,857 shares issued and outstanding

Addational paid-n capital

Accumulated deficit

Accomulated other comgprehensive income

Unearned ESOP shares Note 16)

Total stockholders’ equaty (deficst)

Total leabilities and stockholders” equity (deficit)

See accompanying nofes to conselidated financial staements.

F=

September 30.
19949 1998
$ 3417349 2,514,860
128,040 -
TOEI2 124,007
212111 157011
N0, 000 o
T.530 118,800
265,009 306574
4600841 3.221,352
89.351 107,532
6,747,383 6,101 448
7,500,000 7,000,000
1,540.715 1654766
MA4TOIN 18085098
6,101,241 3284991
11050 at
198,383 171,408
131064010 110424064
[T044351)  (13.507,04%)
M7.957 —
{350,000) {350,000)
(3.930,480) (3023 17TH
§ 22740051 15370912




1
eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended September 30, Yzar Endsd September 30,
1999 1998 1997 i 1999 1998 1997
REVENUE: , ' o
Brokerage commissions £ 17193481 14,763,287 13779477 Loss: from contimsng operations 5 (3,189,048 {6.979.26T7) (1.990.302)
[nvestment banking 1.299.209 2237289 3.003,794
Trading profits. net 1085, 189 405,562 274563 Loss oa sale of discontinwed operations, met of
Other broker'deaber 1,323,578 1.489 853 Tr4529 m 1ax benefit of $159. 748 and 5409692
Computer handwanz and software operations 9.5 22T 8454279 6982143 in 1998 and 1997, respectively (Note 19) s [249.861) (BH6.512)
Interest income oninvestments and loans 1,411,992 — - Loss from discontinued operations, net of income tax
Gain on sake of assets (Noces | and 3} 2,129 864 = . benefit of 101,788 and $41 1,631 in 1998 and
Othér 44722 46,634 786108 1997, respectively (Mot 19) = {159.207) (TU0.048)
“Total revenue 34,193,262 27,387, 25100414 Loss from discontinped operations — {409.068) {1,465.5710)
COST OF SALES AND OPERATING EXPENSES: Loss before extrordinary item (3,189,048 (7.388,335) (3 455.872)
Brokes/dealer commassions 10,612,894 10,521 902 10,268,764 Extraordinary isem-forgiveaess of debe, net of income
Computercostof sales 8.752.669 7979062 5,767,136 tx expense of $385.000 (Note 19) == G5 000 N
Unarealized loss on securities {Note 17) 65,315 1,751,792 —
[¢ P on coavertible debentures (Note 101 1,002,956 84,031 - Nt loss (3, 189.048) (6,4T3,335) (3,455, 872)
Geperz] and admiristrative 15435464 13,350.245 11,252,747
Depreciation and amortization 427,816 RG24 338045 Preferred stock dividends i (48.154) =
Tonal cost of safes and operating expesses 36307014 34085366 1627552 Net lass applicable to common shareholders ] (3,237.202) (6,473,335) {3 455.872)
Qperating Boss (2113852 (6,658.062) (2,537, ITR) Weighted average number of common shares
i 18,411,886 16,459,515 16,760,597
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES: SRS SRASOSEN . MG GO.SI7
Inserest income 114,754 300,705 150,303 Basic earsings (s} per comson shtire:
Interest expesnse £31.178) {17350} (27,9800 Continaing operations 5 015} (043 012
Intersst expenss 10 rebated panty (Wote 1) (827.527) (388,120 — Discontinued cperations:
her 20422 (15434} 122,580 Sale of disconsinued operations - [0.02) o
Discontineed operatinns = 001 5
Tenal otber income (expense) (714,529) (120,248} 59,683 Rty o [{!.ﬂG] B
Loss befors minonity interess and income taxes (2838381} 165183109 (2427.495) Total
Minority interest in (eamings) loss (224,036 129363 (11.331) ¥ g i) (=11
Loss from contining operations before income taxes (3052 41T) (6,688,947 (24388267
Income tx {expense) benefit (136.631) (260,3200 448524
Loss from continting operations (3, 1B0.048) {6.979:267F (19903023
{Continued)
See eccompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. See accompanying notes o consclidated financial statements.
F-5 F6




eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
For the Year Ended September 3.

1999 1998 1997
Net loss §  (3,189,048) (6.A4T3,335) (3435.872)
Oither comprehensive income:
Ungealized gain on available-for-sale securities.
nes of 125 of §158,517 (Notes 1 and 3) 24T 837 =
Comprehensive income (loss) §  (2041011) 64T 335) {3 ASS 8T

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

BT

VISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Comvestible Accoombsed
Series B Additional other
Prcied o Pt T . : " "
Sk Sl _ Copil Deficit focome ESOF mock: Tistad

Balemors af Scpiember 30, 1996 5 - 181419 IS0 (39775420 - [ 350000) 60855456
Proceeds from chares fomed

theoregh private placemont, net

of isance costs of 330,257 — 7.206 TS0 — - — T&T
et b — — — IASSETY - — (345537
Balances at September 30, 1997 - 168,715 10,566,990 (TAILTI4) - CX50,500 3351
s of Gormece Shases for

oeesn CNone MY — 4,125 TS —_ s — PR GET
Cromenoq stock peceived xed

canoelod i disposition of ool

assets of discontmued operations:

Mo 149y == {4, 5005) (4R S05) —_ - — 15933007
[ssmance of commmon shares for

branch offio: — 3500 6,500 — - - 330,000
Wt foss - — - (473, 335) e — (873, 535y
Balunces at Sepsember 3, | 995 — 17888 TED42 454 L3907 549 .- CR50, 008 ) (303, 17T
Essuance of commeen shanes on

cucTorse of stecic options - 280 53947 — - — S6.7ET
Issmanee of common shares for

imnerest {iote 1 1) — 155 THEH - = — TR
Estmnce of commron shares for

poarenaos (Mote 14) — 2500 &1L 00 — — - 62500
Essemmre of Coevestible Series B

Prefeered stock, set of juusece

ooty of $24L RS (Note 143 PGS — 00T — — — B 4T
Issmome of commng shores m

sehemsernd {Mote 15) =— 5.500 500 — — — 325,000
lssnamce of commos shares for

exirason of debt (Maote 1) — aan 1455 = a = 24 10
Predered s2ock dividends {Note 14) - _— e f4E LRE) — =P 4ELESD
Dther comgrehensive inoome:

Utsrealized gaen on

wwsliable-for-sale securities - — — - H3sar — 41957
Net hass — — — L3, E89.048) = = {3.159.048)
Belances al Seplember ML, 1999 § 1150 196,383 13106401 [7, 044 250N 247,937 (XS0, _J}.!.Iﬂ,ﬁ

See accompanying notes to consolidated linancial statements.
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LVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES )
M, VISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended r ) Year Ended Sepiember ¥
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 1999 1998, 1957 1 5 FROM INVESTING ACTTVITIES: 1999 1998 1997
i S § (.189045) (6.473335) (3AS5.872) ?t:rmkascufm.fmnimr:aﬂoqnipm (238,263) (746,576 (217476}
Adjistments 1 reconcile net loss 10 pet cash used by Dispasal of propesty . 144,849 e =2
vy e hfmmmfu?c.ﬁqu)uml (375000 — —
{ssuance of common shares in exchangs for senvices, 10F¥T, 528 355,761 - Purchase of debt securities N [4,635.275) - Juw
interest expense and setiiement agroement Proceeds fram szle of debit securities 4,306,505 - s
Gain ion sale of assels (2.129.864) == = Procesds - mu\ﬂl_lcg Oeration @ ) _ -
Loss from discontinsed operations — 405068 1465570 Onher mng:t:fm 5.45 EE‘.SEE_J llgﬁ’g;g
Depreciation 2nd amertization 417816 380,234 3R 945 . I
Amortization of financing costs 108,062 = o Proceeds from sale of Pronseer Capital 150,000 — =,
Accretion of discount on investment in delt securitics (ROB2T) = i MNet cash provided by discontinued operations — 221,975 2498 472
Extracrdinary item, pet of income tax of 5585.000 - (915.000) - = ; " o
X R S T T (118051 161.763) [52.298) Net cash provided (wsed) by investing activities (4.541.623) (RO9.463) 2914678
Accretion oa convertible bonds 114,601 6576 -
Minarity interest in eamings (loss) 124006 {129.363) 11331 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Unrealized loss on trading securitses: 65,315 1,751,792 - y .
(14.853) 200,320 5238 Proceeds ﬁu‘u@gmumeﬁqn‘Duﬂmhm
Dﬂ'”m . and liahilifics Ftaam:mprm.m:ﬁnﬁmngmm 534953 6,207, 898 -
Changes ':5; Iﬂ!ﬂ%wﬁnl&‘ el frod g Proceeds from isssance of convertible debenturss to related pasty 1,000,000 7,000,000 -
Bropease fjas $35.109 LE35.065 (434,696) Pmmedsl’m sale of eBanker March 1999 units, net of -
Decrezse {increase) in trade receivables 147,923 {ITOLRTON 218,109 Ujfﬁ'm'gfmf‘ 5 4578754 o
Decrease (acrease) in other receivables 125216 (285217 (3T5.08%) wmmdmmsﬂmamm
Decrease (inorease) in securities owned, pet (1.190831)  {2568.555) 837238 Stock, st of offering costs _ 860,147 - -
G in ot 5 46 SGEASD (563,850 Nupaymsmbmwmg&ﬁmm&ﬂdm —— (150, 1402) [ F90,900%
Imcrease (decrease) in accounts payable and Principal payments on bomowings 161.922) (36,366} {1,207 802)
mccomt caeiians 681879 01701 TS N4 proceeds from magczd'mmm_smk — - TRANT
Increase (decreass) in deferred revenae (130870) 118,200 (24.200) RAEK pousced (1o suburaa o AR (Rt i - -
Increase (decrease) in other current liabélitics (41.475) 57,019 (7.960) Proceeds from excecisc of cBanker wamants 5] == =
Other financing activities {95681 (SE.000) 28,000
et cash ised by contimuing operations (DEIAAT)  STHTIE (L040599) ) o
Net cash provided (used) by discontined opesstions e 397,682 (1702461 Net cash provided (used) by finencing sctivities T.06.186 12,973,430 {588,385)
Wet cash used by operating activities A063447) (132037} _(2.263.060) NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (1.518.881) 7,031,930 63,233
; i CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINMNING OF YEAR o, 112652 2,080,722 1017489
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 7593772 9,112,652 2,080,722
(Continned)
ing notes to consolidated financial stalements. .
See accompanying See scoompanying notes do consolidated Hinancial stuements.
4
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eVISION USAJCOM, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES RELATED TO STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS :

Year S 30,
190 1998 1997
Cash payments for:
lmterest
Contimiing operations s 31,178 22425 27940
Discomtinused operations --- G50 143,508
Todald cash paid for interest 5 3LITH 3775 [T 448
Income taxes: 5 160, 7B 7047 [20 831
OTHER NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
McLeod motz payahle spplied zgainst purchase
price of dieectories (Note 19) 5 — o SO0,
Commen stock received for sale of discontinued
operations {Mate 19 s - 493500 —
Intexest paid to-related party by issuamce of
comamoen stock (Mose 11) 5 TI2.528 221667 _—
Acgaisition of famiture and cquipment by issnance
of commuon stock 5 - 15.906 —

Note receivable exchanged fior stock of Fronteer Capiezl 5 2 B50 000

Shames issoed for guardaty of dividends on

Convertible Senes B-1 Prefered Stock (Mose 14) s B.500
Shases issped for financing costs (Wate 14) 5 25,000
Shares issued in setlement of litigation ] 325.000
Exuipimsent parchased under capital lease 3 146,653

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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eVISTON USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARTES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

eVision USA.Com, Inc., (eVision or the Company) is a holding company that was incorporated under the
taws of the state of Colorado on September 14, 1988, eVision’s consolidated subsidiaries include
companies that:

operaie as a fully disclosed securities brokerfdealer;
ingend to provide transaction processing, networking and imternet based services;

o design, develop, install, market and support software sysiems for the securifies brokerage
industry; and

» provide leveraged financing. including proposed financing over the Intemnet.

The consolidated subsidiaries include all of tie following identified majorty owned or controlled
companies. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

In December 1997, Heng Fung Capital [S] Private Limited (Heng Fung Privaie), a subsidiary of Online
Credit International Lad., formerly Heng Fung Holdings Company Limited (Online Intemational),
purchased 1,136,364 shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock from Robert A, Fitemer, Jr. and
Robert L. Long, former officers and directors of the Company. and from two other employees of
American Fronteer Financial Corporation | American Fronteer or AFFC). In December 1997, Robert A
Fitzmer, Jr. and Heng Fung Private agreed that, upon the regulasory approval of the National Asseciation
of Securities Dealers, Inc. (NASD) of a change in the beaeficial ownership of 25% or more of AFFC,
Heng Fung Private would purchase an additiopal 3556777 shares of the Company's oatstanding
commaon stock from Mr. Fitener which were purchased in February 1998.

American Fromteer Fimmmcial Corporation

American Fronteer, 2 wholly owned subsidiary of ¢Vision, was incorporased in 1974 10 engage i the reil
stock brokerape business in the Rocky Mountain Region of the United Ssates. American Fronteer is
Tegistered as & brokenidealer with the Securities and Exchenge Commission {Commission), is a member of
the NASD and the Boston Seock Exchange, is an associate member of the American Stock Exchange, and is
registered 2% 2 securities broker'dealer inall ) states. American Fronteer s a member of the Securities
Invesior Protection Corporation (SIPC) and other regulatory and trade organizations. American Fronteer is
also ficensed to-sell insurance products in ceriain states, American Fronteer's business consists of providing
retail securifies brokerage and investment services, trading fixed income and equity securities. providing
investmenl banking serwices to corporate and municipal clients, managing and participating in undervriting
corporite and municipal secarities, and sefling a range of professionally managed martial funds and insurance
products.



eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued)

American Fronteer’s principal executive office and Denver, Colorado branch office are located at One
Norwest Center. 1700 Lincoln Street, 32* Floor, Denver, Colorado 80203, American Fronteer also has
hranch offices located in San Francisco, California; Colorado Springs, Colorado; West Palm Beach, Florida;
Attanta, Georgia; Chicage, Tilinois; Metairbe, Louisiana; Las Vegas, Nevada: Albany, New York: Mew York,
New York: Dallas, Texas: and Reston, Virginia

eBanker USA.com, lne.

me&wWme.aMwmmmmWLmimhﬂt
stase of Delaware in March 1998 to operdte 25 a finance company. Fromteer Incoms Growth Inc. (FIGL), &
wmuymmmﬁmmqummmlmmm
International Business Companics Ondinances of the Teritory of the British Virgin slands. In March 1999,
FruumDeveEupawuwasmﬁgadhchaankﬁUS&mIm {eBanker), a Colorado  corporation,
pimﬂyhﬁmuf:ﬁmﬂhgamdmgemmmmﬁngacmmWﬁm

cBanker USAcom, Inc. is 2 20% owned consolidated subsidiary of eVision. In addition 1o s 20% equity
interest. eVision akso has the right to cast S0% of the vote in the election of eBanker’s directors due o its
ownesship of the prefemed stock of eBanker. eBagker has entered into a management agreemen! with
e\'isimtoassialmhmmﬁmm‘sbﬁmmchﬁngpmﬁagmminﬂtﬁ}
identification of lending opportumniti (i) credii analysis of potential borrowers, (iii) structure of loans,
inchuding vield-enhancing equity participation and collateral amrangements and {iv) adminigtration of loans.
In exchange for such services, eVision s entitled o am anpual fee equal 1o 10% of eBanker's pretan profits as
determined from eBanker’s annnal sudited financial staternents.

eBanker was created with the purpose of providing a wide mnge of on-line financizl lending products and
services. ¢Banker intends to identify, target and serve high-margin, global financial market segments,
through its imeractive and multimedia website. ¢Banker's website first became operationa] in Seprember
1999, The website is still in its initial phase of development and will continually be expanded. eBanker has
bmdesigmdasamadcposﬂﬁlﬁng,hmdﬁmnda!wﬁa&cﬁiﬁm:hmitismtmhjeﬂwﬂn
regulations facing traditional financial institutions. To date, eBanker’s activities have consisted of raising
wﬂ:hmdySElﬂ]}.EﬂMwmi&miupimp]mofmﬁﬁMMEng
affiliated and unaffiliated emilies.
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES {Continued)
06 Tecknologies, Inc.

Q6 Technologies, Inc. (6 Technologies), is a Colorade corporation formed in March 1999 by Q6 Group,
LLC, 2 Pennsylvania fimited lisbility company, and eVision. (6 Technologies is cumently a development
stage company with 10 continuing operations. On Jane 18, 1999, Q6 Technologies acguired from eVision
72.8% of the outstanding common stock of Secutron Corp., a Colorsdo corporation that designs, develops,
installs, markets and supports software systems for the securities brokerage industry (Secotron). Secutron has
one whelly owied subsidiary, MidRange Sobutions Corp., 2 Colorado corporation that is a distributor and
systems inmegrator of computer products to the Rocky Mountain region (MidRange). Q6 Technologies
interests. in Secutron were zcquired in the early formation and capitafization of Q6 Techmologies wilh
eWision. Q6 Technologies v incTeased its ownesship of Secutron to approximately T8% @
September 1999 and 95% in December 1999 in connection with the setlement of a lawsuit by eVision and
Secutron. (6 Technolngies determined that the Secatron and MidRange businesses were not an appropriste:
past of Q6 Technologies' long-terms business sirategy.  Effective December 17, 1999, Q6 Technologies
transferred its owniership interests in Secutron and its wholly owned subsidiary, MidRange, back o eVision
in return for the cancellation of 5,000,000 shares of Class B Commeoa Stock of (36 Technologies previously
lield by eVision and certain contrctual concessions. eVision continues to bold 944,444 shares of Class A
Common Stock and 555,556 shares of Class B Common Stock of (6 Technologres.

Secutron Corporamon

Secutron was incorporased in Colorade in May 1978, Secutron’s business consists of designing. developing.
installing, marketing, and supposting sofiware systems for the securities brokersge industry.  Secutrom
markets hardwase and software to securities brokerage firms. Secutron is also an Internet service provider
providing Intermet services ranging from acoess 1o the Intemnet 1o development and maintenance of Wb sites.
Secatron’s wholly owned subsidiary, MidRange, is a Colorado corperation formed oo January 1, 1993
Mﬁmmmmmmmummmemmqmﬁ
IBM, and acts s a distributor for software products which are proprictary to thind parties. MidRange sells
hardware and software o businesses in several different industries, including manufactarers, distribators and
healthcare providers. Subsequent o September 30, 1999, eVision entered i an agreement 1o sell the assets
of MidRange. hlm&hﬁwﬂhhqﬁTwmmhﬁmwmm
compater handware, software and relased technology investmends of eVision.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of reporiing cash flows, the Company considers all highly liguid investments purchased
with an original matosity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash on deposit in excess of
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation linits was $4,262,993 and $3.108,678, as of September 30, 1909
and 1998, respectively. Included in cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 1999 and 1998 were
S447,379 and $5.705.606, respectively, which were invested in 2 U.S. Government obfigation mutual
fund, The U.S. Government obligation mutual fund invests in 1.5, Treasury and agency obligations and
in repurchase agreements, which have these securities as collateral.
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continased)
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
TRADE RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The allowancs for deubtful accounts is maintzined at a level adeguate to absorh probable losses and credit
losses inherent in the business based wpon specific identification of probable losses and the Company’s
prior history of credit losses. Management determines the adequacy of the allowance based upon reviews
of individual accounts, recent loss experience, current economic conditions, the risk characteristics of the
various categorics of acoomts and other pertinent factars.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Okher receivables include receivables from emplovees, for forgivable loans made to retail brokess. Such
Ioans bear inserest at 8% 1o 105 and generally are due within two to five years from the date the broker joins
the Compeny. The loans and interest are forgiven over the tevm of the loans and are amortized on a straight-
lime basis through a charge to commissions expense. Iy the event a broker leaves the Company priot to the
end of the loan term, the unforgiven loan balance and related interest are collectible from the broker,

SECURITIES

Securities transactions and relsted revenue and expense associated with the Company's brokeridealer
operations are recorded on 2 settlement date basis, usvally the third business day following the trade date.
The effect of using settlement date rather than trade date fwihemrdiug of securities transactions is mod
stgnificant, Tn accordance with financial reporting reguir ts for brokerideal AFFC's financial
instruments, including securities. are all carried at market valpe. Securities without 2 readily available
market value ane remﬁbd at estimated fair value. Unrealized appreciation or depreciation is included in
operations as trading profit or loss. Realized geins and losses are determined using the average cost
method.

Mirketable squity securities held by other subsidiaries are identified as being available-for-sale or trading
cocurities and carried ot estimated market valwe. Unrealized gains and losses are reponed as other
comprehensive income in the case of available-for-sale securities.

Statement of Financial Accounting Sizndards (SFAS) No. 119, Disclosure about Derivative Finamcial
Instruments and Foir Value of Financin! fnstruments, prescribes discloswre requirements for transactions.
in certain derivative financial instruments including futures, forward, swap, und option contracts. and
other financial instruments with similar characteristics. Although the Company is authorized to enter i
soch transactions in the ondinary course of business, and may do €0 in the future, no such transactions
have been consusrmated.

eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continwed)
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

eBanker had originally invested approximately $4. 700,000 in debt securities of Asian corporations, which
were traded ¢n the Hong Koeng Stock Exchange. Beginning in the fourth guarter of the year ended
September 30, 1999, management began selfing these investments. The proceeds are on deposit in a
beokerage account in the Commerzbank in Singapore. As of September 30, 1999, the Company had
investments in debd securities of 51,991 258,

INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

eBanker has imvested in debt securities of varnious corporations thas are traded on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. The Company had classified these debt securities as held-to-maturity  securities.
Consequently. the investments were reported at amortized cost. The debt securities cammy a premium
redemption value over the face amount of each security. I the security is held-to-matarity, the Company
will receive a guaranteed premium above the face value: The purchase discount and the premium for
holding zach secunity 10 maturity were being accreted fo interest income over the remaining life of the
secarity using the effective interest rate method,

As of Jupe 30, 1999, management changed jts invesonent strateoy with respect to the debq securities to
systematically sell the debt securities. Consequently, the invesiments in debt securities have been
transferred from the held-to-maturity category 1o the available-for-sale category, are carried at Tair value
based on quoted market prices and all unrealized gains, net of applicable income tax expense, have been
reported as other comprebensive income in the acoompanying financial statements. When an investment
is sold and the gain or loss is realized, the gain or loss will be reclassified from other comprehensive
income and be recognized as a component of net loss.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair vabue of a financial insirument represents the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current tramsaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liguidation. Significant
differences - can between the fair valee and camrying amount of financial instroments that are
recognized ar historical coss amounts.

The fair valzes of the Company’s short-teom: and Jong-term debt gither approximate fair value or are
estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the Company's curremt incremental borrowing
rates for similar types of borrowing amangements,

The Company’s off belance sheet financial instruments are primarily warrants o pupchase 10,000,000
shares of the common stock of Global Med Technologies, Inc. (Global Med) ar $0.25 per shane, The
warrants have not been vatued due to the sigaificant ownership of Global Med it would represent if the
wormants were exercised and due to the linted market for sales of shares of Global Med common stock.
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¢VISTON USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
REVENUE AND COST RECOGNITION

Revenne from the sale of computer equipment and installation of software is generally recognized when
the equipment and related software is installed and accepted by the customer. Revenue from hardware
and software sales is primasily generated by MidRange which is an IBM business partner selling [BM
hardware and hardware manufactured by competitors of IBM, and acts as a distributor for software
products which are proprietary to third parties.

Costs incurred in researching, designing, and planning for the development of new software are included
in compister kardware and software operations in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. All
amounts are charged to operations as incurred umil soch time as the costs meet the criteria for
capitalization. Soch costs have not been significant. General and adminisirative costs are charged w
expenses as incumad.

Underwriting revenues are recorded when services for the fransactions ase substantially complete.
Transaction related expenses are deferred and later expensed to maich revenne recognition.

PROPERTY, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Propenty, fumniture and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation.of property, furniture and equipment
is compated using the acceterated and straight-line methods based on the estimazed useful Bves of the
gssets. Real property had an estimated useful life of forty years; fumiture and vehicles of three 1o five
years; and equipment has estimated lives ranging from five to ten years. Equipment under capital leases
and leasehold improvements are amonized stmight line over shorter of the lease term or estimated wseful
life of the asset.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for onder the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and Habilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences aiributable to differences between the financial statement
camying amounts of existing assets and labilities and their respective tax basis and operating foss and tax
credit carryforwards, If deferred tax asset realizability is pot considered to be mone likely than not, a
valeation allowance is provided, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacied 1ax mtes
expecied to zpply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary diffesences are expected to be
recovered of settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is necognized
in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

F-17

VISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has adopted the disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
123 (SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. As permitted under SFAS No. 123, the
Company contintes to recognize stock-based compensation costs under the infrinsic value based method
of accounting as prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (APB No. 25), Accounring
for Stock [ssued to Employees.

ESTIMATES

The prepasation of financial staiements in scoondance with genenlly socepted accounting principles
mmmmmmmmaﬂﬁnﬂmmmso{mm
liahilities and disclosure of continpent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amoumnts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results coukd differ from
those estimates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

As 4 securities brokeridealer, AFFC is engaged in various securities rading and brokerage activities. A
portion of AFFC™s transactions are collateralized and are executed with and on belalf of instinaticmal
investors incloding other brokeridealers, AFFC's exposure to credit risk associated with the
nonperformance of these customers in fulfilling their comractual obligations purseant to securities
transactions czn be directly impacted by volatile trading markets which may impair the customers'
abilities 10 satisfy their obligations to AFFC. AFFC's principal activities are also subject to the risk of
counterparty noaperformance.

eVision is a party to varous financial instruments with off-balance-sheet rick as part of its nomal course
of husiness, including contractual commitments 1o extend credit and other assistance to third parties.
These financial instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk, which are not recognized
in eVision's consolidated balance sheets.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Cernain reclassifications have been made to prior vears’ consolidated financial statements 1o conform to
currem year's presentation.
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continoed)
NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
RECENTLY ISSUED FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 1998, the FASB isseed Statememt No. 133, Acc iirg for Derfvative I ents and Hedging
Activities. This statemnent was cffective for all fiscal quarters begimning after June 15, 1999, In July 1999,
the FASE issued Statement No. 137, Accoumting for Derivirtive fnstrsments and Hedging Activities -
Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133, The Stuement defers the effective date of
Statemient No. 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. The Company has
ot complesad s evaluation of the impact of this Statement.

NOTE 2. SECURITIES OWNED

Securities owned consisted of the following:

Septemiber ),
1995 1998
Corporate secirities § 133734 1401672
.5, government obligations 1,644 EA
Mumnicipal obligations 156,733 282435
£ 1495901 1 685 085

At September 30, 1998, corporate securities included $1.066.972 invested in Online Credit International
Ltd. (Onlive International), formerly Heng Fong Holdings Company Limited, affifiated entities.

NOTE 3. NOTES RECEIVABLE
Notes receivable at September 30, 1999 consists of the following:

Note recsivable from unaffilisted entity, interest at 14%.
principal and interest due July 2000, secured by equity securities 5 2.850.000

Note receivable from unaffiliated entity, intesest at 125,

principal and intesest due December 31, 1999, unsecured 0,000
Note receivable from unaffiliasted entity, interest a1 12%,
inerest payable quarterly, matures July 1, 2000, unsecured 250,000
§  3.150,000
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 3. NOTES RECEIVABLE (Continued)
ele af Fromeer Capiral

On July 30, 1999, eVision entered into 2 Stock Porchase Agreement with Ladsbeigh Investments Limited,
BV1 whereby e¥iston agreed to sell and Ladsleigh agreed to purchase 1005 of the stock of a wholly owned
subsidiary of eVision, Froateer Capital, Inc., for $3,000,000, excluding cash and warrants o purchase equity
in a pablicly traded company. The primary assets were appeoximately 122,084,000 shares of the common
stock of Online International, originally purchased in open market transactions on the Hong Keang Stock
Exchange. The punchase price of Fronteer Capital was based on the fair value of the primary assets beld by
Fronteer Capital as of July 30, 1999 based on a third party quotation service, Unrealized gains on these
trading securities hebd by Fronteer Capital through Juky 30, 1999 of approximately $1,682.000 have been
realized. The purchase price was paid in cash of $150,000 and in the form of a promissory note for
$2.850,000, which bears interest at 14% and is due July 30 2000, To secure the promissory note. eVision
will hold all the primary assets of Fromteer Capital in escrow.

Other

During the year ended September 30, 1999, eBanker advanoed 300,000 o two unaffilizied entities, for the
purpose of funding temporary working capital needs. The loans are expected 1o be repaid from proceeds of
private placements for which AFFC is acting as the selling agent. eBanker received a wasrant 1o punchase
10% of the catstanding shares of common stock at the time of the privaie placement offering a5 a loan
arigination fec for the 30,000 note receivable,  For the $250,000 note receivable, eBanker received a lnan
origination fee of warmants to purchase 200,000 ghares of common stock of the entity 2t $1.25 per share in
addition 1o a fee of 1% of the loan amount. Subsequent to year end, eBanker advanced an additional
£100,000 1o this entity for which it received wamams to purchase 80,000 shares of common stock at $1.25
per share plus a fee of 15 of S100,000 or $1,000.

KOTE 4. NOTES RECEIVABLE, RELATED PARTY
Motes neceivable, related party at Sepeember 30, 1999 consists of the following:

Noie receivable from affiliaed company, interest a1 12% pavable

monthly, masmres April 2000 §  ZA350,000

Note receivable from affiliated company, interest at |2% payable

moathly, matures December 31, 1999 750,000
§ 34000000
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 4. NOTES RECEIVABLE, RELATED PARTY (Continued)
Giodal Med Technologies, Inc.

As of September 30, 1999, noles receivable, related party consists of notes receivable of eBanker from
Giobal Med which total $3,400,000. Giobal Med is an affiliated company dee lo common control.
Fronteer Capital had committed 1o lead Global Med $1,650,000 primarily for working capital, with
interest ax 12% per annom. In exchange for the commitment, Fronteer Capital earned a wammant 1o
purchase 1,000,000 common shares of Global Med a1 $0.25 per share. During October 1998, eBanker
agreed 1o an assignment of the loan commitment from Fronteer Capital to Global Med. excluding any
warramts. As of Seplember 30, 1999, eBanker had advanced 51,650,000 to Global Med on this line of
credit. 1o return for the loan, eBanker received a warrant 10 purchase 5,000,000 comman shares of Global
Med at S0.25 per share.

In October 1998, eBanker purchased a ponion of notes receivable from Global Med to Online Credit
Limited, formerly knowm as Heng Fung Finance Company Limiied (Online Credit). The total note
receivable from Global Med was $1.500,000. Of this amount, cBanker purchased $1,000,000 and a
warrand fo purchase 4,000,000 common shares of Global Med at $0.75 per share from Onfine Credit for
£1, 100,000,

The total amount owed eBanker as of September 30, 1999 under these lines of credit from Global Med
was 52,650,000, The common stock purchase warrants held by eBanker tofal %,000,000 shares of
commeon stock of Global Med for $0.25 per share. The warranits are caried at a cost of $100,000. and are
included in other assets. [nterest on the lpans is 12% per annum. The loans were originally due and the
commitment expired April 15, 1999,

in March 1999, ¢Banker gramed an extension of the loan dee date ontil April [5, 2000, In addition, the.
defatlt conversion price described below was increased to SIL25 per share from $0.05 per share. In
consideration for the change in terms, Global Med agreed to pay eBanker a 2% fiee of $53.000, payable in
42,400 shares of restricted Global Med common stock.

if Global Med defaults on the repayment of any amount bormowed pursuant to the notes originafly issued
to Online Credit, all existing members of the board of directors of (lobal Med will have to resign and
Orline Credit will have the righi to appoint all new members, If there 35 default and Online Credit does
not exercise fis rights on default, eBanker will have the same rights en defoult on the repayment of any
amaunts bormowed pursuang to the Fronteer Capital commitment as Online Crodit 2s are specified above.
In addition, if Global Med defaulis on the repayment of amounts owed 10 eBanker, the foars may be
converted to common stock of Global Med at a default conversion price of $0.25 per share.
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eVISION USA.COM. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( Continued)
NOTE 4. NOTES RECEIVABLE, RELATED PARTY (Continued)

In March 1999, eBanker entered into a bridge loan agreement with Global Med for $750,000. The
promissory mote is convertible into commeon stock of Global Med m a price based wpon the average bid
price of Global Med's common stock for a period of 13 business days prior to Aprl 15, 1999, As of
September 30, 1999, Global Med had an owtstanding balance due on the loan of $T50,000. Cutstanding
principal amounts under the loan are due December 31, 1999 and acorue 2t an interest rate of 12%.
Interest is payable monthly. eBanker received a loan commitment fee of 2% or 515,000, which was paid
in 13,275 shares of Global Mad common stock.

NOTE 5. INVESTMENTS IN DEBT SECURITIES

As of September 30, 1999, investments in debt securities of Asian corporations traded on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange are as follows:

Carrying [nterest Matwrity
Corporation Valae Rate Date
China Resources y 5 1199558 200% D300
Paal Y-ITC TOLTO0 5.00% 020301
5 _ 1991258

As of September 30, 1999, the debt securities are classified as available-for-sale and carred ar fair valoe.
Av September 30, 1999, pross unrealized gains on the securilies were 3406454, with the net of tax
unrealized gain of $247.937 reconded in accurmulated other comprehensive income.

During the year ended September 30, 1998, proceeds from the sake of available-for-sale securities were
$4.305,603 with gross realized gains of $447.853. For the purpose of determining gross realized gains,
the cost of the securities sold is based on specific identification.



eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 6. PROPERTY, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Property, famiture and equipment consisted of the following:

September 30,
1999 1998
Fumnitere and sguipment 3 2901228 2923665
Leaschold improvements 599,107 538,520
Real property == 245,100
3,500,335 3,727.285
Less accomulated depreciation and amortization (2.266,975) {2,186,154)

S__ 1233360 1S413L

NOTE 7. FINANCING COSTS

Asof Septernber 30, 1999, financing costs, amortized over the life of the debt instruments using the
effective interest rate method, consisted of the following:

Financing Accumulated

Losts amortization Net
Offering costs of the eBanker private placement
umnits allocated 10 the convertible debentures
Motz 100 § 038374 (97,644 840,730
Financing costs for guarantee of dividends by )
relazed party (Note 14) 62,560 (4, 168) 58,332
Financing fee for extension of due date for the
convertible debenture to related party (Mote 1) 25,000 (6, 250) 18.750
§ 1025874 {108,062) 217,812

eVISION USACOM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounis payablc and accrmed expenses consisted of the following:

Sepiember 30,
1995 19498
Trade accounts payable 3 1,324,504 131325
Accroed legal reserves 819,001 500,000
Payroll related accounts FEZ 409 553,197
Onher accrued expenses BO1.845 148,438
5 3AIT 549 2,514,860

NOTE 9. LEASES AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Leases

The Company and its subsidiaries lease office space under long-terni noncancelable operating leases. The
leases provide for annual escalations for wilitics, taxes, and service costs, as well as escalating rental rates
over the term of the leases. The Company has two capital leases, One is for comrrunication equipment
with a balance of 330,876 as of Sepicmber 30, 1999, The Company pays $1,030 per month through
October 2002, which results in an effective interest rate of approximately 12%. The other capital lease,
for compater hardware and software, has a balance of $129.287 as of Septemaber 30 1999, with payments
of $4,871 per month throagh April 2002, which results in an effective interest rate of approximately 12%,

Reat expense included in the consolidated statements of operations was £1,983,102. 51,809 255 and
$1.387,125 for the years ended September 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Included in equipment and fHixtures in the accompanying balance sheets are the following assets held
under capital leases:

September 30,
1994 1998
Communication equipment § 46,807 46,807
Computer hardware and softwane 146,653 -
Assets under cagital lease 193,460 46,807
Less accumulated amortization (40L651) (10.921)
Assets under capital lease, met 5 152809 35.586
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
NOTE 9. LEASES AND LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
The ﬁﬁhwhgmﬂumi{ﬁmm!mmmmmmmg onder capitsl leases and the fitare

minimum lease payments for all noncancelahle operating leases included in comtinuing operations at
September 3, [999:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
2000 5 0812 249056
2001 TB1Z 1915919
002 46457 1,638,905
2003 - 1347421
2004 — LI60.595
Thereafter e 2,901,767
Tedal minimum lease payments 188,081 11.013.663

Less amount representing interest {27918)

Present value of minimaum lease payments iz 160,163

Long-Term Debr

Long-ferm debt as of September 30, memmwammmmmm;m
payable to a bank, secured by real property, with monthly payments of $3,333 plus accrued interest.
Interest was at 8.50M% and the lnan matured March 1, 2001, During the year ended September 30, 1999,
the Company sold the real property and paid the note in full. The balances as of Septemiber 30 were as
follows:

1599 1998
Capital leases 1600063 114,872
Long-term debt - HI6.66T
160,163 231,539
Less cumrent portion (M.B12) (124.067)
3 B9.351 107,532

eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 10. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES
Fromteer Developement May 1998 Private Placement

On May 26, 1998, Fronmer Finance Inc. (which was bater merged imto eBanker)
commenced a private placement of 30,000 units (Unit} each consisting of (i) one $1,000 convertihie
debenture, due August 1, 2008, paying 10% per annum (i) 100 Class A common shases; and (iii)
warmanis exercisable at $3.00 per share for 500 Class A common shares (Fronteer Developmem Private
Placement). The convertible debentures @re converible inte Class A common shares at a conversion
price of §5.00 per share.

Fqﬂwlmnscﬂhemebewiapm?ﬁwmﬁnmagﬂmpmﬁmarﬂxmpavuhﬂ]mhbm
the convertible debentunes is §3.4%. As of September 30, 1999, 2 total of 7.958 unils were issued
through the eBanker Private Placement for proceeds. of $6,832.851, net of isseance costs of $1,125,149,
Therefore, the convertible debentires were recorded a1 83.4% of the $7.958.000 face amount of the
convertible debentures. Tbcdimwmtbtmvmﬁ:ledabenhmisbcﬁngnuﬁmﬂam:djumﬂ:
to the stated interest rate of 104 using the inferest method. Original issue discount amorization of
$114.601 and 36,576 has been recognized through Septensbes 30, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

mmvﬁﬁﬂe&hmasdwduladmmmaaguﬂl,zﬂﬂsandgemu'm'emtmlhﬁeby
eBanker prior to maturity. Interest is ar 10% per anoum, pavable each Jansary 31% and July 31%. These
&hmmmmvmﬁ:inmﬂmufmmﬂﬂckufeﬂantﬂﬂammm‘SSﬂ]pcr
share, Amiamemmlhemmﬁb!edehamnuuﬁcpmbﬁm 1999 and 1998 was
$132,633 and $TTA54, respectively,

The offering memorandum for the Fronteer Development Private Placemens incloded 3,000,000 shans of
aﬂlboﬁmdﬂmﬂmmmﬂ&:hmqunirdeﬂsimlnmﬁaﬁﬂmmmmﬂ»
amount of no less than 26067% of the amount of Units purchased by ootside investors. &¥ision has
fulfilled its commitment. This investment is eliminated in the sccompanying consolidated balance sheet
There were no commissions or eapenses associated with the Class B comman stock issuance.

I March 1999, Fromteer Development was merged into eBanker USA.com, lnc. leBanker), a Colorado
mpmgh;thﬂyfmlb&wmmdcﬁmmhgammdlmg;we&mwmnga&m
CorpoTation. As a result of the merger, the Fronteer Development Class B Common Stock. which had 4 3010
1 voting preference and was owned by &Vision igiving eVision 9% of the voling power and 46% of the.
u]m':_'p-imm}.mu@gﬁhmqﬁv&ﬂamﬁﬁsﬁadeﬂ%msﬂc&lmeﬂm
common stock has one vote per share. Alfter the merger, «Vision beld 46% of the voting and equity interest
in eBanker. mmmmm&mﬁcﬂmw@@m a share of Series A Preferred
Stock. The Series A Preferned Siock gives the holder S0% of the vote in the election of Directors of eBanker.
eBanker sold the Series A Prefermed Stock for $1,000 1o ¢Vision,
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued}
NOTE 10, CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (Continued)
eBanker March 1999 Private Placement

In March 1998, eBanker commenced the March 1999 Private Placement of 3,000,000 units. Each unit
consisted of one share of commen stock and one detachahle warrant to purchase one share of common
stock. ‘Each March 1999 Privase Placement Unit was sobd for $6.00, The detachable wamants will be
mhﬁemyﬂumdmdmﬁmm&nmmmuﬁ&mpam&mmmw
ufl‘.!ﬂtla:rsafteraaiairlialpuhiiacnﬁeﬁagﬁeﬁmkwmrﬁusorm;mraﬁaﬂ:dmeufﬂrhﬂmh
1999 Private Placernent until Auguss 31, 2000. A total of 899,444 March 1999 Private Placement Units
were issned for proceeds of 54,678,754, pet of issuance costs of $717,912.

NOTE 11. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES TO RELATED PARTY
I December 1597, the Company sold Online Credit a ten year 54,000,000 10% Conventible Debenture that

is convertible into shares of commen stock of the Company at-a price of $0.53125 per share until December
15, 2007, unless sooner paid. and an option 1o purchass a $11,000,000 10% Convertible Debenture that is

converihle into shares of common stock of the Company a5 2 price of 9061 per share ontil ten years from the.

date of issue unbess sooner paid. With the exception of a convertible debenture for $500,000, the convenible
debepmures mature in ten years., Online Credit partially exercised the option and purchased additional 10%
Convertible Debentures totaling. $2,500,000.  On Sepiember 23, 1998, Online Credit and the Company
agnced to amend the terms of the remaining $8,500,000 of the 511,000,000 10% Coavertible Debenture by
increasing the interest rate to 12%, changing the conversion price to the Jower of $0.35 or the: fair market
value per share, and changing the default conversion price to $010 per share. On September 25, 1998,
Online Credit partially exercised its option 1o purchase SES00.000 of 12% Converible Debentures by
purchasing a $300,000 12% Convertible Debenture from the Campany. During the year ended Seplember 30,
1999, Ouline Credit purchased an additional $1,000.000 convertible debenture. Therefore, as of September
30, 1999 and 1998, Online Credit had purchased a wotal of 58,000,000 and §7,000,000, respectively, in
convertible debertures. At September 30, 1999, the current portion of the convertible debentures, doc Manch
2000, was SS00,000, which was originally dwe March 1999, Inconsideration of the extension of the due date
to March 2000, eVision paid Online Credit a financing fee equal to 5% or $25,000 which was paid in 44,092
shares of common stock of the Compasmy.

The gquarterly inborest pnywmism!htm&uﬁbhdebenﬂmmh&uipmumﬂszmﬁhk
Debenture agreement are currenily being made in shares of the Company's common stock and resulted in
412,800 shares being issued through September 30, 1998 wo Online Credit. During the year ended September
30, 1999, 1.569.417 comumon shares of the Company wene issued 10 pay the accrued interest through Jime 30,
1999, Subsequent to Seprember 30, 1999, 428,583 common shares of the Company were ssued to pay the
accroed inmerest of $212,11 1 through September 30, 1999,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contined)
NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (bemefit) relating to the loss from continuing operaticas for the three years in the
period ended September 30, consisted of the following:

1999 1958 1997
Current 1 i36.631 = 99,556
Deferred - 20,520 (S48 480)
$ 136,631 200,320 {448.524)

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended September 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997, differs from the
mea@mmus.mimmmanﬁ-mm&mmm
operations before income taxes as a result of the following:

15999 1998 1997

Computed “expected”™ income tax beaefit § (1.037.821) (2.274,242) (829.201)
(Increzse) decrease in income tax benelit resulting

from:

Nondeductible expenses 19487 159,948 10158

State taxes, net of Fedéra! bemeli (166,327} (E50,268) {R2,000)

Unconsolidated subsidiaries for tax purposes 162051 (111.476) L 856

Change in valuztion allowance for deferred tax

assels 1166000 2,504,784 505,000
Cither (6,539 165.574 {152.437)
Income tax expense (beaefit) 3 136631 290,320 (448,524)
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 12. INCOME TAXES {Continued)

Temporary differences between financial statement carrying amounts: and the tax bases of assets and
liabilities that result in significant deferred tax assets and lizbilities ane as follows:

September 30,
1099 1908

Deferred tax assets:

Defemed rent concesstons % 601,000 643,000

Accrued expenses 376,000 459,000

Allowance for doubtful accounts 151,000 136,000

Unamortized employee loans (13,000 135,000

Unrealized loss on investments - 683,000

Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates 29,000 97,000

Contribution and operating loss carryforwzrds 4,209,(xx) 1.992.000

Gross deferred tax assets 5,353,000 i, 147,000

Valuation aHowance (5.262.000) 14,006,000
Deferred tax assels after valuation allowance 91,000 51,000
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment {91.,000) {31.000)

Giress deferrad tax Tiahilities {91,000 {51,000)

Net deferred tax asset 3 _ e =

Met operating losses of approximately $10.500,000 expire during the years from 2011 to 2014,

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considered whether it is more likely than
moit that the deferred tax asset would be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferned tax asset is
dependent on the geaeration of future taxable income in the perfod in which the temporary differences
become deductible. The Company has established o valuation albowance for defemed taxes doe 10 the
uncertzinty that the full amoumt of the deferred tax asset will be utilized. In determining the valuation
allowance, managemenl considered factors inchuding the reversal of existing temporary differences and
estimates of futare taxable income:,

X
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Secutron-Anthony R. Kay Setdlement

Secutron Corp. has entered into an agreement to seetle the lawsuit by Anthony R. Kay and ARK
Consuliing Services, Inc. (jointly hereinafter referred 10 as “Mr. Kay™) that was filed on July 30, 1998, in
the District Court for the City and County of Denver, Colorado. Pursuant to the terms of the settlement,
eVision agreed 1o issue Mr. Kay 550,000 shares of ¢Vision common stock. Ine addition, the Company kas
agreed to register Mr. Kay's shares of eVision's commen stock for resale. The Compeny has also agreed
that if Mr. Kay does not receive & net amoum of a1 least $325,000 from the sale of the common stock,
Secutron and the other defendants will pay Mr. Kay the difference between what Mr. Kay does receive
and $325.000 or provide Mr. Kay with additional shares of eVision's common stock to make up the
deficiency based upon the then current trading prices of the common stock. I Mr. Kay does nod realize
$325.000 from the sale of all of the commion stock by April 1, 2000, Mr. Kay is enfitled 1o receive the
deficiency in cash,

Other Comtingencies

The Company is a defendant in cenain arbitestion and litigation matters arising from its activities s a
brokeridealer. In the opinion of management, with the advice of counsel, these matiers, including any
damages awarded agaimst ihe Company, have been adeguately prowided for in the accompanving
consolidated financial statements, and the ultimate resolution of the other arbitration and litigation will
not have 2 significant adverse effect on the consolidated results of operstions or the consolidated financial
position of the Company.

On December 23, 1996, AFFC received notification of an arhitration aveard in NASD Arbitration No. 95-
05062, Chang, et al. v. AFFC that was originally filed on October 21, 1995. The allegations in the case
relade to a private placement sold by a former broker at AFFC, all of which sales occurred prior to his
employment by AFFC. AFFC provided for damages that were awarded in the amount of $424.824
against AFFC, which AFFC appealed. During the year ended September 30, 1999, the Company lost the
first appeal and the court ordered AFFC to place on deposil, in 2 restricted cash account, the amount of
$375.000. The deposit will remain in the restricted acoount pending the outcome of the next level of
appeal.

Convertibie Deberitures

eWision previeasty sold Online Credit a ten year 54,000,000 10% Convenibile Deberiture that is converiible
into shares of common stock of ¢Vision and an option to purchase an $11,000000 12% Converthle
Debenture that &s convertible into shares of common stock of eVision.  As of September 30, 1999, Online
Credit had purchased a total of 8,000,000 of convertible debentures, of which $1,000,000 had been
purchased during the year ended Seplember 30, 1999, The option 1o purchase the $11.000,000 12%
Convertible Debenture has 57,000,000 available remaining under option. The principal is due in ten years,
except for one installment of S500,000 that was due March 1999, The installment duse date was extended to
March 2000. {See Note 11.)



eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {Continued)
Loan Commitment

On Ocighier 4, 1999, eBanker extended 1o Global Med a $2,000,000 bridze loan commitment, of which a
total of $600.000 was drawn in October and Noverber 1999, Qutstanding principal amounts ander the Joan
are due April 12, 2000 and accrue interest at 2% In return for issuing the loan commitment, Global Med
issued 86,957 sharss of commen stock of Global Med to eBanker in payment of 2 5% commitment fee.

NOTE 14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Siock ssuences

During the vear ended Seplember 30, 1999, a toial of 1.569.417 shares of common stock were issued in
payment of sccroed interest to Online Credit. As of September 30, 1999, the Company had S212.1110 of
avcrued intersst payable, which was subsequently paid through the issuance of 328,583 shares of common
stock of the Company. In addition, Online Credit agreed 1w extend the matority date of the S500.000
converible debenture due in March 1999 until March 2000 in exchange for a 5% fee of $25.000 payahle
in 44,092 shares of commaon stock of eVision. (See Note 11)

Oriline International has guaranieed through October 31, 2002, the payment of each anmaal 8% cash dividend
on the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock that is being offered by ¢Vision in a private offering if such
dividend is mot paid by eVision. In consideration for making such guatanty, ¢¥ision tssued an affiliate of
Online Interpational 250,000 shares of eViston's common stock which had a valoe of $62.500 beased oo the
closing price of $0.25 per share of the common stock on the date of the agreement.

On April 25, 1998, the Board of Directors approved a resoluion 1o compensate Online Credit for is time,
MWManmsesmmﬁngupmnpﬂmjugamemiﬁnnﬁmuhkﬁmm&nd
10 eVisin 10 be operated as.an AFFC institutional sales Jocation upon final NASD approval. Compensation,
ﬁagmdmwﬂw&nddmammmmﬂnmmﬂmpildmmgmm
a5 well 25 oertain estimates; was $350,000 paid in 350,000 shares of common stock of €Vision:

Preferred Stock Private Placements

eVision is authorized To fssoe 25,000,000 shares of preferred stock.  OF the suthorized shares, 87,500 shares
have been designated as Series A Preferred Stock and retired; 3,000,000 shares have been designated as
Series B Preferred Stock, of which 25,500 shares have been sold and were exchanged for Convertible Series
B Preferred Stock.  An additional 2,000,000 shanss have been designated as Convertible Series B Preferred
Siock. eVision fesued 110,500 shares of Convertible Series B Prefermed Stock:  The 110,500 shanes of
Convertible Series B Preferrad Stock included the 25,500 shares of Series B Preferred Stock that were
exchanged. Subsequently, ¢Vision designated 2,000,000 shares of Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock.
The undesignated prefesred stock may be isswed in series from time to time with such designations, nghts,
Memm:ndihnhaﬁumasdehmﬂufdimnfeﬁdmnmdannﬁmhgmﬂmm
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eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continned)
NOTE 14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Contimued)

On October 16, 1998, ¢Vision commenced a private placemeat of 1,500,000 shares of its Series B Preferred
Seock at a price of $10.00 per share. Before the offering was terminated, 25,500 shares were sold. On May
12, 1999, eVision commenced a second private placement of [.500,000 shares of its Convertible Seres B
Preferred Stock.  ‘The 25,500 shares of Series B Preferred Stock sold in eVision's first offering were
i fior Convertible Series B Prefermed Stock. Including the shares exchanged from the first offering.
110,500 shares of Convertible Series B Prefemed Stock were sold in the second offering before it was
werminated. Proceeds as of September 30, 1999 were SB60.147, et of issuance costs of 5244.853.

On' September 27, 1999, eVision cemmenced a third private offering of 1,500,000 shares of is
Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock at a price of $10.00 per share-and 110500 shares were being
offered in exchange for the Convertible Series B Preferred Stock on a one-for-one basis. The Convertible
Series B-1 Preferred Stock is being offered by American Fronteer, which will be issued 2 maximum of
150,000 warrams, depending on Uhe proceeds of the offering, that altow Lhe holder 10 ponchase shares of
e¥ision"s Convertible Series B-1 Copvertibie Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $12.00 per share for
five vears. American Fronteer also is 1o receive 3 commission of 104% and a non-accountabie expense
zllowance of 3% of the total amount sold in 1he offering. The offering of the Coavertible Series B-1
Preferred Stock will continoe unti all 1,500,008 shares of Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock are sold
or exchanged or until December 31, 1999, whichever is earfier. ¢Vision has reserved the right 1o continue
the offering beyond December 31, 1999, Through December 24, 1999, approximarely 350,000 shares of
Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Seock have been sold for gross procesds of 53,500,000,

The Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock has a curmulative anmual dividend rate payable semi-annmally of
#% in cash and 7% in additional shares of the Converfible Series B-1 Preferred Stock.  Online Credit
Intervational Lid, formerty Heng Fung Hoklings Company Limited (Online International), has guaranteed
the pavment of any cash dividends that accrue on the Coavertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock through October
31, 2002. The semi-annual dividend paysble on shares of Conventible Series B-1 Preferred Stock will be
equivvalent to three and one-half one mmdredihs of a share of Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock for each
outstanding share of Conventible Series B-1 Preferved Stock.  Any Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock
issued as a dividend on the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock will have the same dividend and the same
1erms as the Convertible Series B-1 Prefemed Stock. The dividend on the Convertible Series B-1 Prefered
Stock is payable semi-anmually beginning October 31, 1999, and continuing each April 30 and October 31
thereafter, when and if declared by the Board of Directors. Each share of Convertible Series B-1 Preferred
Stock is immedintely convertible by the holder into 10 shares of ¢Vision's common stock which is equivalent
1oa price of $1.00 per share of common stock. If the conimon stock does not have a closing bid price of at
least $1.15 per share for a2 least 20 trading days during the period commencing on Septersber 3, 1999, and
ending on September 30, 2000, the Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock will be convertible by the holter
intoy common stock determined by dividing $10 by a price equal to the higher of the five day average closing
bid price of the common stock prior fo September 30, 2000, or $0.50 per shere.  In additton, each share of
Convertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock is automatically convertible into 10 shares of common stock at $1.00
per share at such time as the clesing bid price of the common stock is &l least $4.00 per shawe for 30
consecutive trading days. The Coavertible Series B-1 Preferred Stock is redeemable by ¢Vision o or after
Ocsober 1, 2003, ata price of $12.50 per share plus any sccreed and unpaid dividends.



VISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Continued)

If Online International is required to pay on its guaranty, eVision will issue te Online International or its
designes a five year 12% convertible debenture tnless the act of €Vision in issuing such a debenvars
would be deemed 1o be an illegal distribution pursuant to the Colorado Business Corporation Act, in
whichu-mt.upmpa}-mentmmegmnw.ﬂamemmmﬂnrm,mmmmm\nimof
2 126 convertible debenture, the number of shares of commeon stock as is egual to the total amount of the
dividend peid divided by 90% of the conversion price of the common stock as defined in the 2%
convertible debenture. In general, the conversion price of the convertible debenture will be the market
price of the common stock on the date of conversioa.

Sales of Common Stock

In December 1997, Heng Fung Capital [S] Private Limised (Heng Fung Private), a subsidiary of Online
International, purchased 1,136,364 shares of the Company’s outstanding commen stock from Robent A,
Fitzner, Jr. and Robert L. Long, former officers and directors of the Company, and from two other
emgployees of AFFC. In December 1997, Robert A. Fitzner, Jr. and Heng Fung Private agrezd that, upon
the regulatory approval of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Ine. {NASD) of a change in the
beneficial ownership of 25% or more of AFFC, Heng Fung Private would purchase an additional
3,556,777 shares of the Company”s outstanding commaon stock from Mr. Fitzner which were purchased in
Febmary 1998,

Warramns

On Febnuary 16, 1996, the Company commensed a private placement of 6,000,000 shares of its 5.0 par
valie commen stock at a price of $1.00 pér share, and 6,000,000 Class A redeemable common stock
purchase warrants at a price of $.10 per warrant (collectively, the Private Placement). The warrants entitle
the holder to purchase one share of common stock ag $1.50 per share at any time ontil May 1, 2000,
Throngh the Privaze Placensent. 5.958,658 shares of common stock and warrants were issned for procesds
of $5.859.563, net of issuance costs of $694.961. In addition, the Company issued 595,865 wamants to
AFFC in accordance with the Private Flacement which allows the holder to parchase one share of
common stock at aprice of $1.50 per warrant uniil May 1, 2000

NOTE 15. STOCK OPTIONS

Dhuring the year ended September 30, 1999, the Board of Directors granted options under the Company’s
September 1996 Plan o employees and officers of the Company. As further described below, options o
purchase a total of 18,955,500 shares wene granted with exercise prices ranging $0.20 1o $1.00 per share,
and vesting perinds ranging from two to five years. All grants were made at the fair marked value of the
stock on the date of the grant and have a term of ten years.
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In Janoary 1999, Fai H. Chan, Chairman of the Board of Directors and President of the Company, was
granted options under the Company's stock option plans to purchase 8,000,000 shares of the Company’s
commeon stock at £.30 per share which was the fair market value of the stock on the dute of the grant. The
options are exercisable immediately through January 27, 2009. The gramt was approved by a vote of the
Board of Directors in which Mr. Chan gbsizined.

On November 25, 1998, the Board of Directors granted the holders of 2,930,000 incentive stock options
new grants at $.20 per shane which was equal 1o the closing price of the common stock as reported on the
OTC Bulletin Board on that date. The new options vest ane-thind on January 30, 1999, one-third on
November 25, 1999 and one-thind on November 25, 2000.

Also, on November 25, 1998, the Company granted 2.800.000 nonguatified stock options to. purchass
shates of common stock to members of the Board of Directors at a price of $.20 per share which was
equal to the closing price of the common stock as reporied on the OTC Bulletin Board on that date. The
opfions vess at the rate of 20% per year through November 25, 2003 and expire on the anniversary date in
2008; provided, thai no option will be exercisable until and unless basic ezrnings per share for any fiscal
year commencing with the fiscal year ending September 30, 1999, are equal to or exceed $0.10 per share.

During the year ended September 30, 1999, the Board of Directors granted nongualified options totaling
39,333 <hares o a director and a consultant with exercise prices equal 10 the market value on the date of
the grant ranging from $0.70 to $1.00 per share, vesting over a thece year period and 4 term of 10 years.

During the vear ended September 30, 1998, the Company granted 700,000 nonqualified stock options 1o
certain employees al an exercise price of $1.00 per share. These options expire April 2, 2008 and are
exercisable as 10 50,000 shares per vear beginning March 18, 1999, plus an additional 20,000 shares per
wear if the branch where employees work meets projected profits each year for five years. These options
were canceled during the year whea the related employees resigned. In addition, opfions were granted to
certain officers and employees of the Company in accordance with the criteria of each individual plan at
exercise prices ranging from $0.625 to $1.00 per share.

The Company has granted options pursuant to three stock option plans. the Incentive Stock Opiion Plan,
(1988 Plan), the 1996 Incentive and Nonstatutory Option Plan (1996 Plan), &nd the September 1996
Incentive and Monstamutory Option Plan (September 1996 Plan). As of September 30, 1999,
approximately 9040000 options are exercisable. During the years ending September 30, 2000, 2001,
2002, 2003 and 2004, 2090,011; (988,011 1.930011; 1,506,067;and 1,506,067 options become
exercisable.

Subsequent to September 30, 1999, the Company granted options to employees to purchase 1,311,000

shares of the Company"s common stock af prices manging fram $0.50 to $0.75 per share, vesting from two
to four vears amd for a period of ten years.
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The following represents additional information relative to stock option activity:

September
Tiotal 1988 Plan 1996 Plan 1996 Plan MaonCheslificd
Ourstanding s of
September 30, 1997 3, 265000 457,000 1, 2400000 228,000 30,000
Expired {340,000} - - — {340,000)
Grantad 2070000 - — 1. 370,000 00,000
Canceled {E65.000) —- (33,0000 (1300000 —
Ouistanding as of
Sepeember 30, 1998 4 830,000 457,000 L.2X05,000 2468000 TOO.L00
Exercised {283,600) = - (283,600) -
Granted 18955500 — — 216,167 10,839,333
Canceled (5.441.734) {328,500) (1,076, 500 [3.336.734) (700,000
Outstanding as of
September 30, 1999 1860, 166 128,500 128,500 6,963,833 1,839,333
Expiration dates:
Scptember 30, 2006 257,000 128,500 128,500 — ==
Sepeember 30, 2007 - - e - -
September 30, 2008 - -— - - —
September 30, 2009 17,803, 166 = = 6,963.833 10,539,333
Ouestanding 25 of
Seprember 30, 1999 18,060,166 128.500 128,500 6,563,833 10,835,333

MnghmMMﬂlﬁ,mmmmmmﬂﬁNﬁmmmmdm
per share, 18955500 options were granted with o weighted average exercise price of $0.31 per share and
5,441,734 opeions were canceled with a weighted average exercise price of S0.68 per share. As of Septernber
30, 1999, the oumstanding options had & weighted aversge exercise price of $0.31. Af September 30, 1998,
the weighted average exercise price of the outstanding options was S0.75. As of September 30, 1999,
9,040,000 options were exercisable with a weighted average exercise price of $0.34.

Pro forma disclosures

The fair value of options granted during 1999 was determined using the following weighted average
assumpiions:

A rigk-free rate of approximately 4.8% for the year ended September 30, 1999, an average expecied
life of 4.3 years, a dividend vield of (9%; and volsility of 99%.
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For the purposes of pro forma disclosares, the estimated fair valie of the employee options is amortized
toy expense over the options” vesting period. Pro forma information is as follows:

1999
Pro forma net loss £ (4,799,000)
Pro forma net boss per share (0.26)

The estimated fair valse of the options granmted during the vear ended September 30, 1999 was
$3.221 612, The estimated compensation expense associsted with this fair value was $1,.610,136 for the
year ended September 30, 1999,

Mo compensation costs wers charged to earnings for options granted under the Company”™s plans for the
years ended Sepiember 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997. Management considers the difference between the pro
forma ret Joss or loss per share under the fair value method and that as calculated by the Company per the
consolidated statements of operations for 1998 and 1997 to be immaterial based on the fair valoe of the
underdying common stock and the activity related theredo.

NOTE 16, EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has adopted an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) for its employees. Coatributions to
the plan are at the discretion of the Board of Directors. All employecs as of October 1, 1989, are eligible
to participate in the plan, and new employees after that date become eligible on Aprl 1 or October 1
which follows the completion of ene year of employment. The plan provides that more than hall of the
assets in the plan must consist of the Company's commaon stock. The ESOP is administersd by a board of
irustees under the supervision of an advisory committes, both of which are appointed by the Company's
Board of Directors. Employees vest at the rate of 20% per vear in ESOP contributions after two years,
vesting an additional 20% each year up to 1009 after six years in the ESOP. The ESOP had a loan from
the Company of $350,000 representing the payment during the year ended September 30, 1997 by the
Company of the ESOP's debt. The loan was secured by 436,840 shares of the Compeany's common stock
and is recorded in unearned ESOP shares in the consolidated financial statements as of September 340,
1999, In December 1999, the ESOP repaid $350,000 plus S212.007 of accrued interest to eVision by
liguidating a portion of its holdings in eVision common stock.
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The allocation of the remaining shares within the ESOP to employees is based oa employees” wages. For
the year ended September 30, 1997, the Company contributed $24,898 to the plan. The Company did not
contribute o the plan nor did the Board of Directors commit any shares to the ESOP during the years
ended September 30, 1999 and 1998, The ESOP owned 418,682 shages of the Company”s common stock
as of Sepiember 30, 1999, and 81,682 subsequent to the foan repayment.

The Company has two retirement saving plans covering all employees who are over 21 years of age and
have completed one year of eligibility service. The plans meet the qualifications of Seciion 401{k) of the
Internal Revenus Code. Under the plans, eligible emplovess can coninibute through payroll deductions up
to 15% of their base compensation. The Company makes a discretionary matching contribution equal 10'a
perceniage of the employee's comtribation. The Company contributed $88,813, $83 854, and $82.890, for
the years ended September 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively. The Company's savings plans owned
61.150 and 2,973 shares of the Company’s commen stock as of September 30, 1999 and 1998,
respectively.

The Company does not provide any post employment benefits to retired or terminzted employees.
NOTE 17. RELATED PARTY ACTIVITY

Fronteer Corporate: Services Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of ¢Vision that peovides management,
accounting, and administrative services 10 uncomsolidated entities that are affiliated through commion
ownership or control. These entities were charged 542,841, which approximases the cost, for these services
for the year ended Seprember 30, 1999,

Dmmmmmnsmmm&Fm&mmamwmmmm
1m.ﬂnmd&cnmmk#&ﬂmmmhmnWRﬂMMﬂmng
Kong Stock Exchange. Two officers and dizectors of the Company are directors of Onfine International.
addition, one officer and director beneficially owns approximately 1% of the ovtstanding common stock of
Online International. As of Septernber 30, 1998, eVision had recorded unrealized lsses on the investment in
Online Intermational stock of approximarely, $1.573,793. During the year ended September 30, 1999, the
stock of Fronteer Capital was sold af a gain to an unaffiliated entity as described in Note 3. Therefore, a5 of
Sepeember 30, 1999. the Company no longer has an investment in Online Intemationz] common stock

Daring the year ended September 30, Imlhcfmrq:anypa}dauuumidedmm.m{iforkgd
services.

eVision had previously been a 20% shareholbder in MultiSource Services, Inc. (MSIL. As 2 clearing
comespordent of MSL, the Company paid MSI clearing fees of $111,512 and $1,096,590 for the years

ended September 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. For the year ended September 30, 1997, Secutron
recorded revenues of 3275,699 for services performed for MSH.
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During the year ended September 31, 1997, & then officer of the Compeny received $334,000 in
nencompelition compensation from the purchaser in confunciion with the sale of the primary assets of the
directory business as discussed in Motz 19.

NOTE 18. MINIMUM NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

AFFC, as a registered securities brokerfdealer, is sabject 1o the Securities and Exchange Commission
Unifiorm Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) (the Rule) and membership agreement with NASD. In
accontance with the membership agreemens, AFFC is required to maintain "ret capital” of not less than
S250,000. As of September 30, 1999, AFFC had “net capital™ of § 19,273,

NOTE 19. ISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Om March 20, 1998, the Company sold the remaining net assets penzining 1o the direttory bisiness and
Fronteer Marketing Group (FMGH, which operations were discontinued during the year ended September
30, 1997, as described below. The net assers had not previously been identified as part of discontinued
operations. The net assets were sold for the retumn by former officers of the Company of 493,500 shares
of the Company's common stock. The net assets were valued by the Board of Directors based on
appraisals, existing financing arrangements and estimates. The loss on the sale of the net assets was
$249.861, net of an income tax benefit of $159,748.

On Febmary 25, 1997, McLeod USA Publishing Company (McLeod, formerly known as Telecom® USA
hbi@ﬁng@nmy}mﬂj'ﬁmemm&mmmm&my
for approximately S2.800,000. The purchase price was pursiant {0 an existing oplion agreement (Ogdion
Agreement) besween Mcleod and the Compeny and was based on refated direclory revenues. The
punchase price consisted of $2,300,000 in cash and $500,000 in the form of a nonrecourse koan that was
applied against the price of the six yellow page directories in accondance with the Option Agreement.

Dnummdmmhumwmymmmmlmﬁm&mwgfawﬁtmﬂy
5202,000 in cash. The parchase price was based on related directory revenues. These dispositions
represented most all of the Company’s remaining directory business assets. As such, the Company had
discontinued ils activitics in the directory business,




eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 19, DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

On September 15, 1997, a third party purchased all of the primary operating assets of FMG for
approximately $421,000. The parchase price was based on existing financing armangements and the cost
of anticipated fixed asset upgrades. A portion of the purchase price was paid in the form of a promissory
fAote in the amount of $141,344 to be paid over 28 months at $5.048 per month, The remainder of the
pmdmcpfimwaap&idiuﬁuTn:mo[aymmisanrmleinthcmmue@atmmﬂ’smnf
anticipated fixed asset upgrades installed in existing telemarketing centers.  Monthly payments of
principal and interest at 10% of berween 53,000 and $8,000 per month were to be made through
December 2000 at which time the balance was due and payable fo the Company. On March 20, 1998, the
promissory poles were sold as part of the sale of the remaining net assets of discontinued operations as
mentioned shove.  Accordingly, the Company has discontinued its sctivities in the direct markefing
bosiness.

Effective April |, 1997, the Company sold all of the stock of Fronteer Personnel Services (FPS.) One of
the principals is a former employes of the Company. The purchase price was determined by the Board of
Diirectors of the Company and represented an assumption of certain liabilities of FPS by the acquiring
entity. The assumed liabilities were reflected at their fair valoes on the books of FPS and were bess than
$20,000. Accordingly. the Comgany has discontinued its activities in the employee leasing business.
Separate disclosares of FPS have not been made due 1o the immateriality of its operations and associated
assess and lizhilities in relation to the consolidated financial statements. The assets and liabilities and
results of operations for FPS are included in the amounts disclosed for the directory business.

Information refating to the loss from discominued operations is as follows:

Year Ended ber 30, 1998: Directory
Business MG Total
Revenue $ - - ——
Cost of sales and operafing expenses 236,502 24 493 260,995
(236.507) (24,495} (260.995)
Nonoperating cosis o — -
Loss hefore inocome taxes (236,502) [24.493) (260,995)
Tncome tax benefil 9236 9,552 101.788
MNet loss from discontinued operations 5 [ 144.266) [14.941) {159 07)
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net
of income tax benefit of $159.748 5 {249,861 - [249.861)
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Directory
Year Ended her 30, 1997: Business FMG Total
Revenve 5 4 866,454 164 652 5,231,106
Cost of sales and operating expenses 4733 860 1,580,934 6.314.794
132,594 (1.216.287) {1.083,688)

Noaoperating costs (28.848) (98.143) (126.991)
Earnings (foss) before income taxes 103,746 (1.314.425) (1.2100679)
Income tax benefit (expense) (35.274) 446905 411.631
Net eamings (loss) from discontinwed

operations & 68,472 (B6T.520) {799,048}
Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net

of meome tax, bepefit of $409,692 % {458,181} (208,34 1) 1666,522)
Clearing Activities

On July 23, 1996, the Company sold AFFC's securifics brokerage clearing division [Clearing Operation)
to MSL, 3 new broker/dealer, for a purchase price of $3,000.000, including a $1.300,000 comtingency m
the form of a forgivabie loan from AFFC 10 MSL plus the net assets of the Clearing Operation.  MST was
formed by Oppenheimer Funds, Inc. (OFT) for the purpose of acquining the Clearing Operation. and OFF
was 1o retain 80% of the outstanding common stock of MSL  The Company received 20% of the
outstanding common stock of MSL As a result of this transaction, AFFC became a fully disctosed
clearing comespondent of MSL. The loan of $1.500,000 was recorded as & boan payable to MST and was
forgivable based on MSI's revenues during the 28 months following the closing date.

During the year ended September 30, 1997, the Company and AFFC were notified by OFI that a decision
had been reached by OFT that MSI and its business were pot consistent with the long-term business plans
of OFL Subsequently, a new clearing firm was sefected for the customer business of AFFC, and the
customer business prewiously cleared by MSI was moved 1o the new clearing firm in October 1997 MSI1
reached its revenue targets for the first $750.000 of the loan, and as a result of this and MSEs decision 1o
no longer be in the clearing business. the entire $1.500,000 loan was forgiven and was recognized as an
extraordinary item during the year ended September 30, 1998.
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Subsequent to September 30, 1998, the Company and AFFC eatered into an agreement with MSI and OF1
purstant to which MSI would withdraw as a registered hrokerfdealer with the SEC, resign a5 a member of
the NASD and pay the Company a fotal of $430.000 0 reimburse AFFC expenses associated with MSI
discontimzing their clearing operation. As a result of the agreement and closing which oocummed on
December 16, 1998, OFI owns 1005 of the owtstanding comanon stock of MSI. Both the Company and
AFFC, and OFT and MST released each other from any claims as part of the agreement.

NOTE 20, SEGMENT REPORTING

Yesr ended 3, 1999
05
Tectnologies
Discoadinued * and
Comsalidated COperations AFFC Secutron eBanker Oihers Elimanations Total
Resespes from
uexaffidiated custormens 5 - N A59 LN i) LTESO07 1,801,569 — 34593262
Imtersegmient revennes -— — 124,362 135372 622,689 (8824231 =
Total revenoes —  NSIA5 9,829,589 1920379 244,258 (BR2423) 34,193,362
Operaeing foss —  (L520:508) [H368) 429,138 48LERG i (2,1 13.852)
Oxher income {expense), net —— [0 [£0.993) - (6714910 — (714,52
Tnscoeme (foss) from operations
before manority meesest and
IDCOe EIXes. —  [25TIS54) {345 3600 A2 L3R (E88 605} —— 1E2E 381
Depreciation and
amoertization — 386, 15T 35523 - 6136 - 427816
Capital expenditees 5 - 308368 IRTET — 57,251 — 388916
Bdentifishic atsets as of
September 3, 1999 L . 4764085 1. 263440 13383675 3,323,851 —- 1 T0L051

F-41

eVISION USA.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continaed)

NOTE 20. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Yes ended September 30, {998
!w‘ m’ m -

Consolidsied _Opesations. AFRC Secutron cBanker Orlsers Elimisatioas Toal
Revenues from '

enaffiliated castoimens L] — 1R.BB53M BASL279 37923 8.7 — FTIZT I
Intersegment revemes — - 412527 — T2612 (484,995} -
Total revesmes — 18,886,301 R, B66606 1790 LI ] (4849997 27387.3M
Operaling hoss [260.935) (3.910,741) (2BLTRS) (46,2550  (2455.280) (BSS9.05T)
Other inoome {expense), pet - 250,304 1M — 3T —— {E20.248)
Laoess from operations befone:

minority Esserest and

income taxes (260.995) (3,660437) [ZB1.615) (46,2555 _ (1.830.003) — {7.079.305)
Less om sele of discostinued

operations, net of mcome

. benefit of 159,748 [249.861) -~ — — — - (249.861)

———

Depreciation and

pmortiration 55,200 F23 033 29,800 — 36,359 . 444 B3
Capital expenditures 3 o T22.887 M.z ~— 3203 e THLART
Idemtifiable assets 25 of

Sepiemsber 30, 1998 3 — 3574716 1408 54 TATLATE 6523383 {3000.316 15370912

Yeerended September 30, 997
Discortinsed *

Cansolidated Dperations AFFC Secutroen cBanker Others EinEnasions Toeal
Revenues from

uraffiliated cestomers osm0s 1s11837) SRE2143 — e = 30,331 500
Intersegment revenaes 25253 — £51 000 — — (482,253) .
Total revesues 35935 1811827 TAGI43 = b {482.353) 3033154
Operating priin (ks (LOSIEE8Y  L2160,897) 129.21% - (495 496) - [3,6L0866)
Ober i pense]), net (26991 123499 {931} — 2E885) — 27308)
Eammngs {loss) from operations

before mimominy inteness

and income taxes 1I..2tﬂ.|5?‘?|=- j:,ﬂl: 37598} F25.284 — {518,381} i [3658.174)
Losx om sale of discontznoed

operations, net of income tax

benedit of $406,692 1666521 s = — — - [6886.522)
Depreciation sd amortizstion 32558 8.7 TH667 - 9051 e 1091503
Capital expenditures 5 63 469 380 403 27073 - - - 485 945
Idemifisble assets as of

Sepnember 30, 1997 5 L9g3gel £.839.443 1868317 — 469528 [ESE 207) 13.003.082
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Tdentifiable assets by indusiry are those asscts that are wsed in the Company's operations in each s¢gmeni.
See Note 19 relating to discontinued operations.

*The informatkon in this-cobumn is for both the dirsctory business and FMG.

NOTE 21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

MidRange

Subsequent to Sepiember 30, 1999, the Company entered into an agreement to s2il the assets of

MidRange. MidRange is included in the Secutron business sezment, which incledes computer hardware,
software and related technology investments of eVision,

For the years ended September 30, 1999, 1994 and 1997, MidRange revenue was 38,391,914, 57,117,007
and $4.666.588, respectively. Costs of goods sold and general administrative expenses for the years
ended Sepiember 30, 1999, 19938 and 1997, were 88,955,205, 7,130,613 and 54,784,780, respectively.
The assets sobd incloded’ 521,164 of furnitore and equipment including compater equipment, net of
scciemutated depreciation of $66,292.

Lockap Agreement

On Ociober 25, 1999, Global Med entered into a Lockup Agreement with eBanker and a Lockup
Agreemeat with eVision. The agreements provide that eBanker and eVision will not, between October 25,
1599 and October 28, 2000, withowt Global Med's prior written consent, publicly offer, sell, contract o
sefl, grant any option for the sale of, or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, (i) warrants 10
purchase 9,000,000 shares of Global Med's common stock at 8025 per share beld by eBanker or the
warrants to purchase | 000,000 shares of Global Med's common stock at $0.25 per share held by eVision
and (i) any shares (the Shares. and, together with the warrants, the Securities) of common stock issnable
upon the exercise of the wamanis; provided, however, that eBanker or eVision may offer, sell, contract 1o
sell, grant an option for the sale of, or otherwise dispose of all or any part of the Securitis or other such
security or instroment of Global Med dunng such period if such transaction &5 privaie in mature and the
wransferee of such Securities or other securities or instruments agrees, prior o such Iramsaction, to be
bound by zll of the provisions of the lockup agreements. In exchange for entering ino the agreements,
eBanker and eVision were issoed 450,000 shares and 30,000 shares of commeon stock of Global Med,

respectively.
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In addition, the agrecments provide (i) eBanker and eVision will not be restricted from disposing of the
Securities in the event that an unaffiliated thind party commences a tender offer for the outstanding
commeon stock, and (i) eBanker and eVision will not be restricted from disposing of 450,000 and 50,000
shares, respectively, of the Securitics in the aggregate if the closing sale price for the Global Med
common stock on the principal market on which it then irades equals or exceeds 53,00 per share for any
ten consecutive rading day period preceding the date of such sale, uwnd (iif) that there will be no
restrictions upon the ability of eBanker or eVision to exsrcise the warranis.
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